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EMPIFIE

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESFONSIBILTTY
FOR ANNUAL INCOMf, TAX RETURN

INSURANCE CO.

MAN L SANTOS
Treasurer

Jtur:,e 12.2020

The Commissioner
Bureau of Intemal Revenue
Quemn City

The Management of Empirc lnsurrncc comprny is responsible for all information and representations
conlained in the Annual Income Tax Retums foi rhe year ended December:r, uore. Managemeriii.-lir,"*l*
responsible for all information and representations contained in the financii .ot"r"rir-i".ip"rvlrg ,r,"Annual Income Tax Retum covering the same reponing period. Funhermore, the Management ir'.erpoiiut.
for. all. information 

- 
and representations contained'in aii ihe other tax retums hled for-the reporting'pe;iod,

including, but not limited, to the value aqded tT and / or percentage tax returns, withholding ru*- r'J*r.,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax retumi.

In this. regards, the Management affirms that the anached audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Retums are in accordance with th;books and
records of Empire Insurrnce Company complete and correct in all material respects. Management likewise
affirms that:

a) the Annual Income Tax Returns has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the National
lntemal Revenue Code. as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other issuances of the
Department ofFinance and the Bureau of Intemal Revenue;

b) any disparity of figures in the submined repons arising fiom the prepamtion of financial statements
pursuanl to financial accourning standards and the preparation ofthe income tax return pursuant to tax
accounting rules has bsen reponcd as rE€onciling itcms rd mitintaincd tn thc compxny's books and
records in accordancc with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No. E-2007 and other relevant
issuances;

c) the Empire Insunnce Comprny has filed all applicable tax retums, rqrons and statements requird
to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other imposilions shown
thereon to be due aDd payable have been paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good
faith.

AUGUSTO Bf,NEDICTO L. G. SANTOS

I

Chairman ofthe B nt
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gLE MAM & Co.
M.AMERCADO&Co.
Cerl ilhd P ublic Accou ntants
2109 Civand 10 Tower 1

156 H.V. Dela Costa Strcet
6815 Ayala Avenue Nodh
1226 Makati City, Philippines

Phone: +63 (2) 89+5783
+63 (2) 893-1509

Fax: +63 (2) 8944793
Eqail: mercado_cpa@Whoo.com
Website: manercado.com

INDEPENDENT AI,]DITOR'S REPORT

The Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Empire Insurance Company
2dFloorB&PBldg.
843 A. Amaiz Street Avenue, Legaspi Village
Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Empire Insurance Company (the Company), which
comprise the statements offinancial position as at December31,2019 and 2018, and the related
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statements ofchanges in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Staternenls section of our report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance

with the Code ofEthics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code ofEthics) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements in the Philippines,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code ofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govemance for the Financial Statemenls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation ofthe financial statements in

accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable

the preparation offinancial statements that are fiee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or elTor,

In preparing the financial statements, management is ible y's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, and using

the going concem basis ofaccounting unless
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to cease operations, or has no realistic al

q)att6r! Iti
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Company or

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material resp€cts, the
financial position of Empire Insurance Company, as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the years tlen ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

Date



g MAM & Co.
Assurance . Tax Advisory . Euslness Process

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibililies for lhe Audit of the Firrancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on
the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to
fiaud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fiom
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's intemal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting'
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use ofthe going concem basis ofaccounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem.

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statemenh or, if such disclosures fie inadequate, to
modifu our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concem.

a

intemal control that we identifu during our audit
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M. A, MERCADO & CO,
Cerlifi ed Public Accounlonls
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

JUL 10 
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g MAM & Co.
Assurance . Tax Advisory . Business Process

Reporl on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regalalions 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in
Note 33 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Intemal
Revenue and is not a required part ofthe basic financial statements. Such supplementary information
is the responsibility ofthe management of Empire Insurance Company and has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audits ofthe basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

M.A. MERCADO & CO.

MARCELINO A, MERCADO
Partncr
CPA Licasc No. 066885
Tax ldentification No. 102-921-222
P.T.R. No. 8130634; Issued on January 10,2020, Makati City
SEC Accreditation No. 1533-A (G.oup C)
Issucd January 15,2019; Valid uotilJanuary 14,2022
BIR Accreditation No. 08-003338-002-2018
Issued Novcmbcr 23,2018; Valid until Novemb€t 23,2021
IC Accreditation No. SP-2018-014-R
Issued April 07,2018; Validuntil April 06,202l
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. ofReg. No. 5658
Issucd Septemb.r 18, 2017; valid until September 17,2020

Firm's SEC Accr.ditation No. 0320-F
Issucd January 15, 2019; valid until January 14,2022

Firm's BIR Accrcditation No. 08{06173{00-2015
Issued Marcj 22, 2018; vslid until March 22, 2021

Finn's lC Accrcditation No. F-2018{0GR
lssued April07,20t8: Va.lid until Apnl 06, 2021

Jtrs l\ 2020
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 3l
Notes 2019 2018

ASSETS
Currert assets

Cash and cash equivatents
Preiniums due fiom ceding companies
ReiDsuranc€ recovorable on losses

Premiums receivablc
Commission receivable
Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies
Salvage recoverablc
Rec€ivables

CurreDt tax asscts

Other currelt assets

2,26,31 ?
3,26,3t,32
3,26,3t,32
3,26,31,32
3,26,31,32
3,26,31,32
3,26,3t,32
3,26,31,32

3l
4,26,31

240,210006 P

14,s2E,845

951,202,034
57,962,147
4,492,272
8,33r,89r
1,459,094

533,530
3,521,227

22310,Et2

t89,401,876
19,448,59?

57,098,180

57,604,986

5,356,836
7,628,197

640,483
695,2rt

t,727,698
21,'103,165

1,304,551,858 361,311,229

Non currert sssets

Held-to-maturity fi narcial assets

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

Property and equipment
Pension asset

Othor nol-current assets

Deferred tax assot, net

5,26,31

6,26,3t
7,3t,32
t6,11,32

8,31

24.31.32

356,656,100
245,873,041

26,078,258

8,621,284

631,228,683 641 ,t 43,85',7

? 1941,780541 ? 1,002,455,086

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Claims payablc

Premiums due to reinsurers

Commission payable

Reserve for uneamed premiums

Prcmiums rcservc withheld for reinsurers

Payables

Other liabilities
Pension liability

9,25,30
10,25,30

I1,25,30
12,25,30

13,25,30

14,25,30

15,25,30

t6,31,32

977,156,101 ?
30,245,123
33,944,050

125,588,273

2577,220
2,283,178

62,263,O59

173,918

81,719,87 4

3t,407,749
41,037,913

l14,145,023
2,5'7'.1,220

4,885,878
37,826,861

?

1,234,231,522 313,600,524

Non-current liability
Defened tax liability, net 23,30,31 940,159

Equrty
Share capital
Retaincd camings

Unrcalizcd gain on availablc-for-sale
financial assets

Revaluation reserve on real estate

Treasury stock
Rcmcasurem€nt gain

18,26,3t
l9

4s0,000,000
241,504,053

700,t21
t4,494,899

(76,886)

t3,327)

16,s36,469
14,494,899

(76,886)

1,219,150

6,26,3t
7

18,31

16,31

706,608,860 688,854,562

See Accottpanyw Notes lo Financial Statements.

45 086?l I l? I

Bukr-at,0t rNIl'i{NAl Rt vr \u
LAR$L IAIPAYET"iS SERvlCt

IJARGE IAI9AYERS ASSIS TANU! ( :VIS
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343,034,840
26t,788.969

23,726,830
843,119

10,448,863

1,301,236

450,000,000
206,680,930

JUL 10 2020



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 3l
Notes 2019

Underwriting income 21,3r,32 ?

21,31,32

2533r1,779

1392s9,944

201,3t4,425

126,970,823

P

Underwriting ex pense

Net underwrititrg income

Other income

Investment

Cain on sale of investment

Gain on sale of property

Others

r r4,051,835 74,343,602

16,798,610

9,181,972

2,22,31

31

31

3l
299,999
25,286 30,261

21,287 ,491 26,010,843

Total underwritirg and other income

Other direct costs

Getreral itrd administrative expenses
23,31

135,339!326 100,354,448

22,714,912
23,31 61,04 8,898

20,938,615

49,3?4,492

Finance income, net

Foreign exchange gain

Dividend income

51,575,516

r,459,475

tt,74027t

30,04r,341

2,609,318

13,090,299
13,199,7 46 15,699,6t7

Profit before bonus

Bonus 3l

64,775262

(9,497,859)

45,740,958

(6,470,s27\

Profit before iIIcome tax

ProvisioD for incom€ tax 24,31

55,277,403 39,2'70,43t

5,989,683 295,887

Other comprehensive income

Item to be reclassiJied to profit or loss

Net loss on available-for-sale financial assets

Tax effect

6,26,31 (15,915,928)

79,580

(49, r9E,E66)

5,925,04'1

o s,836,348) (43,27 3 ,8t9\
Other compreheNlve incomc

Items nol to be reclassiJied to proft or loss

Defined benefit cost r€cognized in OCI

Remeasurement loss

T8x effect

,7

16,3t,32 (l,760,681) (784,558)

24 31 2

?32 I

?

235 36',7

549 t9t

5P 466

19.72 P 15.59

04

1

APl; RVICTt
Total

?te
Basic

JUL 10 2(|20
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195.54

2018

20,962,206

Operating prolit before finatrce iBcoDe

26,31,,32

3l

Net prolit for the year 49,287,720 38,974,544
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EMPIR.E INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Etrded December 31, 2019

Share

capit!l
(Note l8)

Rctained

earnings

Net unrealized

gain on AFS

finrncial rssets

otes 6,26J1)

Treasury
stocks

(Nore 18)

Rcmcrsurement

gain (loss)

(Notes 1631)

Reveluetion

rcserve on

real estste

(Note 7)ote I Total

Balances at January l, 2019

Prior year adjustment

? 450,000,000 ? 206,680,930 ?
- (2,464,s97)

16,536,469 I (76,886) ? 1,219,150 ? 14494,499 ? 688,854,562

(2,464,597)

Balance at January l, 2019 as restated 16,s36,469 (76,886) r,219,1s0 14,494,a99 686,389,965

Dividends paid (r2,000,000) (12,000,000)

Net profit for the year 49,287,720 49,287,720

:t. Other

C. Total

,t

ive loss

ve income for the

at Deccmber 31, 2019

49,287,720

? 450,000,000 ? 24r,504,053 ?

(r5,836,348)

700,121 ? 76

Year Ended December 31, 2018

,232,4 (t7
,232,4 32,218,895

13,327) ? 14,494,899 I 706,608,860

t-Ct-
o
=,

Share

cspit!l
otc I

P 450,000,000 P

Net unrealized

gain or AFS

linancial sssets

Revalurtion

reserve on

reil estltc

Retrined

errnings
ote I

Treasury Remeasurement

stocks gain

-3
h
(,

.:
fr6'

otes 6,26,31 (Note l8) (Notes 16,31 ote

59,810,288 P (76,886) F 2,065,988 ? 14,494,899 ? 705,592,629

I 10,39997,64

59,810,288 (76,886) r,768,34t 14,494,899 705,703,028l, 2018 as restated 450.000,000 179,706,386

(12,000,000)

O
at January l, 20t8

zPrior ad ustmcnt

alance at J

Additional share capital

Dividends paid

t19,298,340 ?
408,046

(12,000,000)

Net profit for th6 year

Othercomprehensive loss

38,974,544

(43,273,8t9) - (549,191)

38,974,544

(43,823,010)

Total comprehcnsive income for the year 38,974,544 (43,273,819) - (549,191) (4,848,466)

Balanccs at December 31, 2018

See Accompanying Noles lo Financial Statenents.

P 450,000,000 ? 206,680,930 P 16,536,469 ? 6,8 P 1,219,150 P 14494,899 ? 688,854,562

450,000,000 204,216,333

(/
o.)

(D

?
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Notes 2019 2018

CASH FITOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax
Adjustnents for:

Prior period adjustnent
Depreciation and amortization
Retirement expense
Provision for impairment loss

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

Gain of investrnent

Gain ofon sale ofproperty
Interest income

Dividend income

Foreign exchange gain

t 55,277,403 ? 39,2',10,431

l9
7,3r,32
16,3t,32

408,046

966,429

636,101

(2,604,109)
(9,181,975)

26,3t,32
3l
3l

2,22,31

3t
26,31,32

(299,999)

Q0,962,206)
(11,1 40,271)

(3,272\

(16,798,610)

(t3,090,299)
(5,209)

Operating income (loss) before working capital changes

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in:

Premiums due from oeding companies 3,26,31,32
Reinsurance recoverable on losses 3,?6,31,32
Premiums recsivable 3,26,31,32
Commission receivable 3,26,31,32
Prerniums reserve withheld by ceding companies 3,26,31,32
Salvage recoverable 3,26,31,32
Receivables 3,26,31,32
Current tax assets

Other current assets 4,26,31

Other non-current assets 8,31

lncrease (Decrease) in:
Claims payable 9,?5,30

Premiums due to reinsurers 10,25,30

Commission payable I 1,25,30

Reserve for uneamed premiums 12,25,30

Payables 14,25,30

Other liabilitites l52L?0

2l,262,5t0

895,436,227
(1,162,626)
(7,093,863)
I t,443,250
(2,602,100)

24,4!6,192

(399,195)

(4,831,947)

15,777,358
(l1,581,275)

1,500,393

2,6s4,46s

t42,286
t44,403

(99s,205)
(1,ts9,722)

8,115,037
(8,013,172)

859,804

33,850,919
(5,628,558)

9,711,688

Cash provided by operations

Contributions paid

Interest received
16,31,32

2,22,31

48,693,837
(1,ss9,479)

5,870,802

40,147,279

r,84',1.521

Net cash provided by operating activities 53,005,160 4't,994,800

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIYITIES
lnterest received

Dividends received
Purchase of available-for-sale ftnancial assets

Proceeds from sale ofavailable-for-sale financial assets

Purchase of held-to-maturity flnancial assets

22,31

3l
6,26,31

6,26,31

5,26,31

1s,091,404

11,740,271

(25,000,000)

10,000,000
(3,794.,119)

299 99

14,951,089

13,090,299
(78,993,029)

7 |,268,339
(l1s,520,000)

(1,419,544)
Proceeds from

Acquisition of
Proceeds from
Net cash

1l(

CT

,26,31

,31,32

622,8466mve

'lsrs
Balance

N 3l 2

?61 2

95

54 046

Years Ended December 3l

(2,464,597)

1,442,751

815,835

656,340
(1,459,47s)

4,919,7 52
(894,103,Es4)

(3s7,161)
864,564

(703,694)
(818,61l)
r6r,681

(r,237,703)
(3,578,305)
1,827,579

JUL 10 20?0 P



EMPIR-E INSURANCE COMPANY

STATEMf,NTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended D€cember 3l
Notes 2019 2018

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ? s3,00s,160 P 41,994,800

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 8,337,495 (96,622,846\

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends paid (12,000,000) ( r2,000,000)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AIID q{SH EqU]YALENTS 26,31,32 1,459,47 5 2,604,109

NET INCRTASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JANUARY 1

2,26,31 5r,802,130

189,407,876

(64,023 ,937)

253,431,813

CASH AN'D CASH

See AcconBanying Notes to Financiol Slotements.

DECEMBER 3 26 l?
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EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. CORPORATEINFORMATION

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

Empire Insurance Company (the Company) was incorporated on December 8, 1949 to engage in the
business and operation of all kinds of insurance, reinsurance, insurance on buildings, automobiles, car
and other motor vehicles, goods and merchandise, goods in transit, goods in storage, fre insurance,
earthquake insurance, insurance against accidents, all other forms of undertaking to indemni! any
person against loss, damage or liability arising from unknown or contingent events, except life
insurance,

On May 26, 1999, the Secudties and Exchange Commission approved the Company,s application of
extension ofamended Articles oflncorporation to extend its life for another Fifty (50) years.

The registered office address of the Company is 2d Floor B & P Building, 843 A. Amaiz Avenue,
Legaspi Village, Makati Ciry.

The financial statements ofthe Company were authorized for issue on June 12,2020.

2019 2018

Cash in banks

Short-term fi nancial asses

Cash on hand

? 54,747,107 ?
rE5,169199

293,000

35,513,207
153,656,669

238,000

? 240,210,006 P 189,407,876

Cash in banks eam interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term fmancial
assets have varying periods between one day and tbree months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. Interest
income for the December 31,2019 and 2018 amounted to P5,870,802 ard ?l,847,521, respectively.
(See Note 22)

3, REINSURANCE

Premiums Due From Ceding Companies
This account represents balances due to the Company as a result of treaty and facultative acceptances

from ceding companies. The Company's premiums due from ceding companies amount to P14,528,845
and ?19,448,597 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Reinsurance Recoverable on Losses
This account represents the amount recoverable from reinswerc under treaty and facultative agreements

as their share in paid and unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses net of salvage recoveries. The

Company's reinsurance recoverable on losses amounts to ?951,202,034 and ?57,098,180 for the years

2019 and 2018

Premiums
This represen luding those by general agents and insuance
brokers incl
liabilities are

the years 201

and other charges, prov
c"xrgvlv?u?8..
respecuvely.

6L,r.r :,'ir i.iF iN If xNrl' Rt Vr \UE
ivabFrl\il TAXPAYEiS SE RvICE

these

and 201

taxe

dPe

LINA

amounts to ?57,962,14'1 arld ?57,604,986 for

The Company utilizes reinsurance agreements to minimize ils exposure to large losses in all aspects of
its insurance business. Reinswance permits recoyery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although, it
does not discharge the primary liability ofthe Company as direct insurer ofthe risk reinsured.

properly segregated and the corresponding



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Premiums Reserye Withheld By Ceding Companies
This account pertains to a certain percentage ofthe total reinsurance premiums due within one year from
date ofretention being held by ceding companies. The Company's premium reserve withheld by ceding
companies amounts to P8,331,891 and P7,628,197 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Salvage Recoverable
This account represents the estimated recoveries the Company may have from losses on policies issued.
The Company's salvage recoverable amounted to P1,459,094 and P640,483 for the years 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Receivables
This represents receivable from non-insurance transactiotrs. The Company's receivable amounts to
P533,530 and P695,21I for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2019 2018

Prepaid investment expenses

Documentary starnps tax receivable
Accrued investment income
Notes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Fire serYice tax receivable

? 6,653,932 P

6,354,260
5,992,618
1,288,107

224,474
453,161

9,445,162
6,33',7,2',75

3,807,160

1,484,609
224,474

404,485

Less: Allowance for impairment loss

22,967,152

656,340

2t,703,165

! 22,3!0rEl2l' 2r,703,rc5

5. HELD.TO.MATURITYFINANCIALASSETS

This account consists oi

20t9 2018

Treasury bonds
Treasury bills
Treasury notes

? 157,887,000 P
165,350,000

185,147,840
102,784,000
s5,103,00033,4 19,100

?3 100 P 343,034,840

Held-to-maturity financial assets ofthe Company carry effective interest rates as follows:

2019 2018

Less than one vear

Moae than vear 3.625 - 8.1253.625 - 8.125

t0

Commission Receiyable
This account represents uncollected commissions on heaty and facultative agreements. The Company's
commissions receivable amounts to ?4,492,272 and P5,356,836 for the years 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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The movement in held-to-maturity financial assets is summarized as follows

2019 2018

At January I
Additions
Maturities
Unrealized foreign exchange

P 343,034,840
2s,000,000

(r0,000,000)
(1,378,740)

226,3t't,000
115,520,000

1,197,840

P

At December 31 3s6,656,100 P 343,034,840

At each reporting date, the Company performs evaluations of the impairment of held-to-maturity
financial assets. The Management determines whether it intends to sell or if it is more likely than not that
it will be required to sell impaired financial assets. The Management considers current and forecasted

liquidity requirement, regulatory and capital requirements and securities portfolio management. For all
impaired HTM frnancial assets for which there was no intent or expected requirement to sell, the
evaluation considers all available evidence to assess whether it is likely the amortized cost value will be

recoYered.

6. AVAILABLE.FOR-SALE FINANCIALASSETS

Available-for-sale investments which consist of listed/unlisted equity shares are meastred atfair market
value ar,d at cost respectively are as follows:

?

2019
No. of

Shares

Itrv€slmanlal

Mrrkel Vrlue

In!rslment

at Cost

Unr€alized

Cain (loss)

D€ferred

Equilf rho s

Alala Corpo€tion- PreGncd B

Globe Prefened Sfiarcs

Nalional Reinsurance Corporation

Phjlippine l.ong Distance and

Teleaommunjcation Company

PLDT $ries Profened

BanI ofrle Plilippim Islands

S.mtan Mining

Sar Miguel Purefoods Prefened

Pilipioa Shell Petroleum

Mctro P.cific InYcstfiEnt CoD

CMAT

Nuclelr Insuranc€ Pool Inc,

Philippine Ma.hinery MsnagernEnt

80,000 ?

40,000

7,100

39,920,000 I
20,000,000

5,t91

40,000,000 ?

20,000,000

tz,t1t

(80,000) t 1400)

(6,248) (31)

(20,000) (r 00)

l14

6,670

9t3,516

t,200,500

266,100

871,420

1,n3,200

t,758,300

fiz,632

71,369

80,298,056

26,411,200

20,055,810

28,582,576

4,2*,736

9,31t,719

66,700

29,976?88

49,111,890

20,002,5d)

51,623,695

1?S\2t6

9,%6412

1t2,632

4,669

s0,121,268

(23,034,690)

s3J.40

(23,0{l,ll9)

G,001,480)

(s94,7J1)

23

2s1,606

0ls,r73)
261

015,206)

0s,00?)

(2,974)

20,000

Seryice 20

l? ?P

a) Available-for-sale-investments which consist of listed equity shares which are measured at fair
market value are as follows:

100
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2018 No. of

Shares

Invdlmentat

M.rkrtValu.

InvesorEnl

at cosl

unr€alized

sain (loss)

Defered

tares

Equl!! shat.s

Ayah Coqoratio - Prefened B

Globe Pr€Gned Share!

National Rcinsualc, Corporation

Pfulippine L.ong Distanc€ and

Teleconmunication Cornpany

PLDT Series PreGned

Bsnk oflie Phjlippine Islands

Semirara Mining

Satr Migue! Plr€foods Prcfened

Pilipinas S[ell Pelroleum

MeEo Pacific Investrrnt Corp

GMA 7

Idirt tr shorcs

Nucle Insurance Pool Inc.
Plilippile Machimry Management

80,000 I
40,000

7,100

35,600,000 ?

19,200000

6,461

40,000,000 ?

20,000,000

12,t41

(4400,000) I
(800,000)

(s,680)

(22,000)

(4,000)

(28)

ll4
6,670

913,516

1,200,600

2(6,1N

871,420

1,2232U)

l,?58,300

r00

128,250

7t,t69

85,870,5

27,673,830

19,602,45{)

{1,610305

5,67s,64E

9,565,152

66,700

29,97678f,

49,447,890

20,002,500

51,523,695

?,25&216

9,966O2

l2&2s0

4,669

55,893,716

(21,774,M0)

(400,0s0)

00,013,390)

(r582,s68)

(401,320)

641

23

219,69

00&870)

(r,000)

(s0,067)

(7,913)

12,fi1t

20,000 (20,000) (100)

Service 20

P

b) Available-for-sale-investments which consist ofproprietary shares measured at cost.

2019 2018

Proprietary shares
Wack-wack Golf Club
Sta. Elena Club
Makati Sports Club

P 15,000,000 P
1,750,000

35,000

1s,000,000
1,750,000

35,000

? 16,785,000 P 16,785,000

The movement in this account is summarized as follorvs:

2019 2018

At January I
Additions
Disposition
Fair value changes

P 261 ,184,969 P 294,08t,170
78,993,029

(62,086,364)
(49,198,866)(1s,91s,928)

245,873,041 ? 26t, 788,969

ln evaluating impaiment of available-for-sale financial assets they consider a number of factors

including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than cost,

the financial condition and near term prospects ofthe issuer, and management's ability and intent to hold

the secwities until fair value recovers. Based on the results of the evaluation, as of December 31, 2019

and 20 I 8 unrealized losses on some AFS are tempomry.

?

12
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This account consists ofproperty carried at revalued amount and equipments carried at cost which are as

follows:

2019 2018

At cost
At revalued amount

? 5,311,259
20,706,999

P 3,019,831
20,706,999

P 26,078,25E P

Movements in the property and equipment carried at cost in 2019 follow:

23 '72 830

Building
Equipnert

Co.a

Dilpcd

3,644,943 I
627,75\

4209)67 ?
2,&57'
(5erJ62)

3,4E5,7J9 ?
515,091

575180 I
55,00r

r4168,709
3J94,179
(691,552)

21681,441 4:r,12,691 5,921)77 4,061,831 53l,9Et 17511,J26

1,755,002

11E,l84

3,132,710

r51,392

2,969,117 3,183,972

259552

398j017

39310

11,4,18,878

864,13
(691,562)

1,442,75t
(59r,s62)

1,883.186 3,284,102 3,141,828 3,453,624 437327 12J00.067

? 800,255 I 9EE.592 ? 7,179549 I 608209 I 194.65t ? 5)11259

Movements in the property and equipment caried at cost in 2018 follow:

Brildirs.nd
Bolldi!s

In

B.Siuug beldces ? 2:85,489 I
256,191

3395,1E9 I
249:154

35643@ I
645,0{b

3,245,584 I
2d0,155

558536 t
18,444

13,049,155

1!419544
2,551,680 3,644J41 1209367 3,485,739 576,980 14,468,709

11674,033

90B69

?p46,75O

1a5p6o

2,540,110

429,061

2,EE3539

300,.133

10,482,,149

966,42,9

39E,017

I,765,002 3,l32JIo 2969.111 3,183,972 398,017 11,448,878

? 785,678 I 5l2J3J I 1140,190 I 101,76, I 178,963 t 3,019,831

Movements in the property carried at revalued amount follow:

2019 2018

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

P 14,600,700 P

o4,600,700)

14,600,700

( 14,600,700)

Net book value
Appraisal increase 20,106,999 20,7 06,999

Total

The condominium unit ofthe Company was appraised on September 24, 2016 by an independent firm of
appraisers, Asian Appraisal Company, Inc. On August 17,2016, the Insurance Commission approved

the request of the Company to value its real estate property at fair market value based on lhe appraisal

report and recognized by the Company as at December 31, 2016.

?20 999 P 2
,1

999

13

7, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

21551!680 i
r3r!?61

?
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The value ofthe condominium unit was arrived using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the
value ofthe condominium unit was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within
the vicinity. The technique ofthis approach requires the adjustments of comparable property by reducing
reasonable comparative sales and listings to a common denominator. This was done by establishing the
differences between the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The
proPerties used as bases ofcomparison are situated within the inunediate vicinity ofthe subject property.
Comparison was premised on the factors of lime, unit arealsize, unit location, unit improvements,
building location, building features/amenities, bargaining allowance and others.

Significant increase (decrease) in estimated price per square meter would result in a significantly higher
(lower) fair value ofthe condominium unit.

The Company determined that the condominium unit is valued in terms of their highest and best use
which is categorized under Level 3 ofthe fair value hierarchy and it does not differ from its curent use.

The Company has determined that the highest and best use of the property used for office space is its
current use.

There was no transfer between levels of fat value measurement in 2019.

The following are believed to provide reasonable bases for comparison:

Zeta Building Cancho Gonzales Building

Location

Uodisclosed location of 5ff Concorde

7/F Zeta Building, Salcedo Cacho Gonzales Building, 4tr Concorde Condominiurq Condominium, Benavidez

Street, L€Easpi Village, Aguine Street, t gaspi Benavidez comer Salcedo comer Salcedo Streets,

Barangay San Lorenzo, Village, Baragay San Su€ets, t egaspi Vill€e, Legaspi Village, Bamngay

Makati City, Mehopolitan Lorenm, Makati City, Banngay San Lorenzo, Makati San Lorenzo, Makati City,

Manila M€topolitan Manila City, Metopolitan Manila Metropolitan Manila

101 squarc meter (sqm) 170 sqm 438sqm 565 sqm

F 7,000,000 P I1,000,000 i t7,710,000 P 22,925,000

Floor are,
Utrit price

Unit price pcr
sqm

Adjustrnent

laclon
Unit lrer
Unit locatiotr

Improvcmeots

Buildiog

lmrlion
Builditrg
featurcs

Bargsirirg
rllowroce

P 69,307 P 64,',106 P 40,434 P 40,575

-10.00%

-10.00%
.10.00%

5.00%

- r5.00%

-10.00%

-10.00%

5.00%

-10.00%

-10.000/o

5.N%

10.0070

.10.00%

5.00%

10.00%

.10.00%

Nel rdjustments -40.00% -35.00% 5.00%

2,022 P

5.00%

2,029

Peso rdjustmeot

to nct price (21,123) ?P 1\?
Adjusted price P 97{|0 ? 8?,353 P 38,412 P 18,146

(tuuhded on P

After analysis of the market data and considering the adjustment factorc, the market value of the
condominium unit appraised is estimated lo be Y20,706,999.

Concorde Condominium

42.000
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The difference between the fair market value ofthe condominium and its net book value as ofDecember
31, 2019 was credited to Revaluation Reserve on Real Estale.

The Company assessed that there is no material change in value of the property and equipment from
September 24, 2015 to December 31, 2019.

If the condonrinium unit was carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the net book value of the
condominium would be NIL.

The total cost of fully depreciated property and equipment which are still in use in the operations
amounted to P7,880,205 zIrd ?7,434,194 as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

8. OTHER NONCURRINT ASSETS

This account consists ot

2019 2018

Verification fund
Taxes fund
Real estate ac4uired
Deposits
security fund
Defered charges-MctT

? 3,090,525
3,779,411
1,235,080

462,609
53,659

887,895

3,',t06,443

1,235,080

334,826
53,659

4,230,960

P

? I P l0 863

9. CLAIMS PAYABLES

This account comprises of the total amount of losses and claims due and payable to policyholders and
other claimants. Also included in this account are losses and claims due and payable to reinsurers under
heaty and facultative agreements.

The Company's claims payable amounts to P977,156,101 and P81,719,874 for the years 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Chins pryrble and leinsurers' sh.re of
u!'!t!ql!Eqluq lirbiliti.3 Net l019

Claims psldle
and uneamed

prennulns

Reinsorers' share

ofliabilioes Ner 20l8

Claims pq{ble reported

,nd loss sdjusanent

€xperses ? 977,156,101 ? 951r010J4 ? r5,95a,{67 ? 8t,719.874 ? 15250,108 ? 16169,766

IO. PREMIUM DUE TO REINSURERS

This represents all the reinsurance premium payable by the Company to all its treaty and facultative
reinsurers.

The Company's premium due to reinsuers amounts to ?30,245,123 and?31,407,749 for the years 2019

and 2018, respectively.

l5
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Commission payable pertains to amount payable to agents, brokers and general agents for business
underwitten by them or to ceding companies upon business accepted from them.

The Company's commission payable amounts to P33,944,050 and ?41,037,913 for the years 2019 and
2018, respectively.

12. RESERVE F'OR UNEARNED PREMIUMS

The Company adopts the 246 method of recognizing premiums revenue and accounting for the portion
of premiums rritten relating to the unexpired periods ofthe policies and uneamed premiums.

A comparison of reserve for unearned premiums computed using this method and the statutory rate
follows:

2019 2018

Reserve using 24th method
Reserve using statutory rale 40o/o

? 12s,s88,273
100,915,206

P n4,145,023
89,011,615

? 7? 25 133 408

2019
Provision for

uneamed remrums

124,6@,802 ?
133,06.3,251

t0,s19,779 ?
7,474,97a

(10,519,779)

Net
114,145,o23

125,588,273

(tr4,t4s,o23)

At January I
New polioies written

Premiums eamed

P

(t24,664,802)
At D€cember 3l P t33,063,251 ? 7,474,978 ? 125,s88,273

13. PREMIUM RESERVE WITHHELD FOR REINSURERS

lncluded in this amount is the portion of the reinsurance premiums ceded to insurers, which was
withheld by the Company in accordance with featy agreement and / or laws, rules and regulations.

The Company's premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers amounts lo 72,57'1,220 for both years 2019

and 2018.

14. PAYABLES

Obligations of the Company arising from non-insurance and non-reinsurance transactions are lodged in
this account.

The Company's payables pertain to dividends and cash collateral amounts to ?2,283,778 and P4,885,878

for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

t6
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Reinsurers' share of
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15. OTHER LIABILITIES

This accor.rnt consists of:

2019 2018

Credits to client
Bonus payable

Accrued expenses

Taxes payable

Unearned bond disoount
Service fees payable
Deposits
Documentary stamps tax payable
Dividends payable

SSS, Pag-ibig and Philhealth payables

Verification fees payable

Others

P 31,847,020 P
9,491,859

6,730,069
5,570,701
4,468,038
1,862,737
r;stAzt

366,074
294,702

264,38s
1,691

8,356

16,245,040

6,470,527

2,381,'.l86

4,588,244
4,'725,9t9
2,142,899

983,430

2s,169
255,491

8,3 56

?62 ? 37,826,86'7

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The Company has a retirement plan covering all its qualified employees. The plan is non-contributory
and the retirement cost is determined by applying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method taking into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability and salary projection rate. The fund is
administered by a duly appointed fund trustee.

The above mentioned retirements plan falls under the delined benefit plan that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factoB
such as age, years ofservice and compensation.

Movement in the present value ofdefined benefit obligation is summarized as follows:

2019 2018

Present value ofobligation, January I
Current servic€ cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid from plan assets

Actuarial (gain) loss - changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (gain) loss - experience

? 10,672,698 ?
816,992
800,4s2

(3,214,882)
841,926
962,tt2

9,56',1,568
7 44,793
5l1,865

(464,263)
(826,388)

I,139,123
Present value ofobligation, December 3l ? 10,879,298 ? t0,6'12,698

The movement in pension assets is summarized as follows

20t9 2018

Fair value ofpension assets, January I
lnterest income
Contributions
Benefits paid from plan assets

Remeasurement gain (loss) - retum on plan assets

P 11,585,752 ?
806,E54

1,559,419
(3,2r4,882)

(31.823)

12,309,449
646,136

(464,263)
(90s,s70)

Fair value of assets December 31 ?10 P ll 85 '7 52

l7
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Asset recogniz€d in the statements offinancial position is as follows:

2019 2018

Present value of obligation
Fair value ofpension assets

? 10,879,298 P

(10,705
t0,672,698

(11,585,752)

Unfunded obligation
Asset c.eiling

173,918 (913,0s4)

69,935
Retirement benefit obl on asset

Expenses recognized in the statements ofprofit or loss:

F 113 18P ,l I

2019 2018

Current service cost
Net int€rest cost

P 4M,992 ?
(1,1s7)

744,793
008.692)

&!i!eE9!!!ILense P 815,835 P 636,101

Expenses recognized in the statements ofother comprehensive income are as follow:

2019

? 312,'.l35
905,570

effect ofasset ceil 180 433 't 4'l
n reco

2019

5

Remeasurement gain, beginning
Adjustments

P? 1,141,644 2,951,4|
(42s,2O9)

Actuarial the 1 160 1 '784 558

Movement in net asset is summarized below

n oss

2019 2018

Beginning net asset

Expense recognized, profit or loss

Rgmeasurement loss

Contributions paid

? (843,119) P
815,835

1,760,681
(1,ss9,479)

(2,263,7',|8)

636,101

784,558

Closin net asset ? 173,918 P 843 119

t8

2018

Actuarial gain (loss) on obligation
Remeasureme[t gair/(loss)- plan asset

Remeasurcment gair/(loss) - changes in the

1,804,038 P
31,823

The cumulative amor.nlt of actuarial gains and (losses) charged to re-measuement gains are as follow:

2018

*The amounts shown in the statements of changes in equity were net of income tax effect on actuarial
loss. Total accumulated actuarial losses on employees' benefit obligation amounted to (P13,327) and

?1,219,150 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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The principal assumptions used in determining pensions for the Company are as follow:

2019 2018
Discount rate
Salary increase rate

5.19%
6.00v.

7.50%
6.00%

The expected retum on pension assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on
the assets underlying ttle current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments are
based on gross redemption yields as of the financial position date. Expected retums on equity
investments reflect long-term real rates ofretum experienced in the respective markets.

AssumPtions regarding future mortality and disability experience are based on published statistic
generally used for local actuarial valuation purposes.

Actual retum on plan assets:

2019 2018

Expected retum on plan assel.s

Aclqarial gain (loss)
P 806,854 P

(31,823)
646,136

(905,570)

1A.ctlral lgtu4!4gension assets ? 775,031 P (259,434)

The sersrl,vir)., ofthe defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is

lmpact otr defined benelit obligation
2019 2018

Increase in
assumption

Decrease in

assumption
lncrease in

assumption

Decrease in

assumption

Discount mte

Salary $o\{th rate

4.50o/o

4.400/.

(3.70v")
(3.10o/o)

330%
3 -300/o

(2.80%)

(290%)

Each sensitivity analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by re-measuring the
defined benefit obligation at the financial position date after hrst adjusting one of the current
assumptions according to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the
relevant assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all the other assumptions
remained unchanged. The corresponding change in the defined benefiI obligation was expressed as a

percentage change from the base defned benefit obligation.

It should also be noted that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are open

to subjectivity, and do not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than those assumed

may be deemed to be more reasonable.

Retirement trust fund for December 31, 2019 is comprised ofthe following:

2019

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Unit Inves[nent Trust Funds

Other (Market Gainyl,osses, Accrued Receivables, etc.)

0.03l,/0

0.52vo

70.660A

28.680/"

0.tto/o

P 281,335

13,529

5,843,763

5,041,763

341,191

100% ? 11,593,581

t9
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Retirement trust fund for December 31, 2018 is comprised ofthe following:

2018

Cash and cash equivalents

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Unit InYestment Trust Funds

2.48o/o

0.63./.
50.410/o

43.540/o

2.94o/o

287,335

73,529

5,843,763

5,04'7,763

341,191

P

Other (Market Gains{-osses, Accrued Receivables , etc.)

100% P 11,593,581

The retirement trust fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market
valuation. While no signiflcant changes in asset allocation are expected in the next financial year, the
plan trustee can make changes any time.

The Company has no specific matching strategy between the retirement fund assets and the defined
benefit liabilities under the plan.

The weighted average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation is as follow:

Years

Financial year

2019 4.1 years

The Company's expected future benefits payments are as follow:

Amount

? 6,808,041

2,258,9?l
549,904
28,'t96

282,963
2,323,162

lJnwual or Significant Risks to which the Retirement Plqn ExPoses the Company

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the plan exposes the Company. However, in the event

a benefit claim arises under the retiement plan and the fund is not sumcient to pay the benefit, the

unfirnded portion ofthe claim shall immediately be due and payable from the Company to the fund.

Plan Amendments, Curtdilment, or Settlements

Benefits paid from plan assets amounted to P3,214,882 for the year ended December 31, 2019.

20

Financial year
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. SHARE CAPITAL

This account consists of:

2019 2018

2,500,000 common shares; Pl00 par value;

issued and outstanding

Redeemable convertible prefened shares;

?100 par value; issued and outstanding

P 250,000,000

200,000,000

P 250,000,000

200,000,000

The Company has one hundred twenty three (123) shareholders each owning 100 or more shares ofthe
Company's share capital as at frnancial position date.

On June 14, 2018, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved the Company's application for
increase in capital stock.

The redeemable convertible preferred shares shall have the following features:

o It shall have full voting rights;
o It shall be redeemable at the option of the Company based on the par value ofsuch redeemable

convertible preferred shares;
. In the event ofany dissolution or Iiquidation or winding up ofthe Company, whether voluntary

or involuntary, the holders ofthe redeemable convertible prefened shares shall be entitled to be

paid in full, or pro rata insofar as the assets and properties of the Company will permit, the par
value of the redeemable convertible preferred shares and any accrued but unpaid dividends in
respect thereof before any distribution shall be made to the holders of common shares. The

holden ofthe redeemable convertible preferred shares shall not be entitled to participate in any
other distribution. ;

o Each redeemable convertible preferred share shall have the guamnteed and prefened right to
receive cash dividends at the rate of6% per annum payable out ofthe eamed surplus profits of
the Company so long as such redeemable convertible prefened shares are outstanding.;

o Redeemable convertible preferred shares, in part or in whole, are convertible into common
shares at the book value of the common shares of the Company at the time of conversion.

Conversion of the redeemable convertible prefened shares shall be at the oPtion of the

stockholders after five (5) years from date of issue of such redeemable preferred shares and

every second year after.

Treasury Stocks
The Company's future eamings are restricted from the payment of dividends to the extent of P76,886

representing treasury shares for 2019 and 2018.

2t

P 450,000,000 P 450,000,000
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18. RETAINED EARNINGS

This account consists of:

2019

At I January

Prior period adiustrnent

? 206,680,930

(2,464,5971

t79,298,340

408,046

P

As adjusted

Dividends paid

Net profit for the year

P 204,216,333

02,000,000)
49,287,720

179,706,386

(12,000,000)

38,97 4,s44

P

At December 3l ? 241 P20 680 930

Prior period adjustments pertains to expired MCIT in 2019 and adjustments made to begiruring balance
ofpension liabllity and plan asset as presented in Note l6 h 2018.

Dividends paid

On May 27 , 2019 , the Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividends in accordance with
Article 6 of its amended articles of incorporation to all redeemable convertible prefened shareholders of
record as ofthe said date, payable on June 6,2019 amounting to P6,000,000 for the period ofDecember
4,2018 to June 3, 2019.

On October 28, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividends in accordance
with Adicle 6 of its amended articles of incorporation to all redeemable convertible preferred
shareholders ofrecord as ofthe said date, payable on December 4, 2019 amounting to P6,000,000 for the
period ofJune 4, 2019 to December 3, 2019.

19, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Entities and individuals that dircctly, or indirectly though one or more intermediaries, control or are
contolled by, or under cornmon control with the Company, including holding companies and
subsidiaries are related parties ofthe Company. Entities owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the
voting power ofthe Company that gives them significant inlluence oyer the enterprise, key management
personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of these

individuals and companies associated with these individuals are considered related parties.

In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is dirccted to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.

Details ofkey management compensation and directors' remuneration follow

Trarsactio.s for the y€ars ended

Dccember 3l

Nature of Transaction T€rms and Conditions 2019 2018

Exp.nses
Kcy management
compensation - salarics
and other short-t€rm
benefits

Will be settl€d in cash,
payment €very l5lh snd 3oth
of the month; uns€curedCompensation

? 4,001,940 P

2J28,693

4,001,940

I,726,326Directors' remuneration

Will be settled in rash,
paynent every I 5lh and 30th
ofthe month: unsecured

? 6,430,633 P

22

5,728,266
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As of December 31,2019 and 2018, there were no sale and purchase of insurance and investment
contracls, receivables, payables and loans to key management personnel.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no services rendered and non-interest / interest bearing
advances to / from associates and other related parties.

20. UNDERWRITING INCOME AI\D EXPENSES

This account consists of:

2019 2018

UNDERWRITING INCOME
Direct prrmiums-net

Add: Premiums assumed

P 262,535,952

34,344,688

? 241,498,28t

17,859,17r

Gross premiums

l-€ss: Premiunrs ceded

296,880,640

43,178,907

259,351,4s2

34,915,117

Net premiums retained

!,es5 Plemlu4s reserve for the year
253,101,133

t25,588,274
224,441,135

t14,t45,024
Gross premium on net retained

Add: Premiums released from reserve

128,113,459

1t4,145,024
t10,296,11t
80,294,104

Premiums eamed

Cornmissions eamed

242,258,481

11,053,296

190,590,815

r0,723,610

Total lncome F 253,311,719 P 201 314,425

2019 2018

UNDERWRJTING EXPENSES
Agents' conunission and expenses

Claims, losses paid aod adjustment expenses

Insurance expense

P 6t,369,867
55,982,651

21,907,426

51,783,813

54,263,599

20,923,41I

P

Total underwriting expelses P 139,259,944 ? 126,9',t0,823

NET UNDERWRTTING INCOME P 114,051 ? 14,343,835 ,602

21. IITVESTMENT INCOME

This account consists of:

2019 2018

lncome fiom investments in securities

lncome from savings ard timg doposits

? 15,091,404

s,870,802
14,951,089

t,841,521
P

I 20,962,206 P r6,798,610

23
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22. OTHER DIRECT COSTS AND GEI\ERAL AI{D ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Other direct costs consist of:

2019 2018

Salaries and wages
Printing, slationery and supplies
Taxes and licenses
Oflicers' and employees benefits
Communication and postage
Professional fees

Repairs and maintenance
Commision expcnse

P 12,919,714
2,749,579
2543,391
2,503,107
1,098,299

455,643
445,113

r0,623,804
2,043,5t3
3,659,27 5
2,351,056

814,208
1,049,372

229,7 53
t6'1,634

P

General administrative expenses consist ot

20't 9 2018

Agency e)genses
Marketing eryenses
Salaries and wages
Professional fees
Trans pofi ation and travel
Rentaleryenses
Depreciation and arnortization (Note 7)
Representation and ente(ainnEnt
Printing, stationery and supplies
Light and water
Conrnun ication and postage
Officers' and employees benefits
Association and pool dues
Service fee
Provision for Lrpairrnent loss
Directos' fees and allowances
Repain and rnaintenance
Security services
lnsurance
Bank and service charge
Janitorial services
Donations and contributions
Intercst
C-ormission e&ense
Miscellaneous e&enses

? 11,924,854 ?
11342492

5,537,O47
3,808,844
2269,866
1,673559
rA42Jst
1325,369
r,r 7839r
t,ro223t
1,098299
1,072,760

760,616
704,06s
6s6340
577,500
190,763
r86,800
152972
8839s
7O327
29,500
26Bss

10,8T1,756
8,765,901
4,553,059

3,406,819
1,718,018

1,306,095

96r.,49
943,166
875,791

1,086,693

814,207
t,007,596

769,979
s44,294

456,500

98,466
169,143
61,722
59,408
89,747

85,47s
20,715

7t,u3
13,824202 10,625,670

? 61,048,898 P 49,374,492

As at December 31,2019 and 2018, miscellaneous expenses pertain to expenses incurred by the

branches that are related to the operations ofthe Company's agents and reimbursements.

24
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23. PROYISION T'OR INCOME TAX

This account consists of:

2019 2018

P 3,140,504 P
2,849,179 295,887

P s,989 P 295 887

20t9 2018

Statutory income tax
Income tax efect on:

Tax exempt income
lncome subject to lower tfi rates
lncome not subject to tax
Temporary differences
Deferred charges

Non deductible expenses

? 16,583221 ? |,781,t29

(6288,662)
(3,s22,081)

(437,843\
(3,194,131)

(2;7 56,1s5)
(5,039,s83)
(3,927,090)

('181,233)
(r86,711)
909,643

? 3,140,504 P

Under Republic Act No. 9337 - Income tax amendments, the corporate income tax rate applicable from
January I to October 31,2005 of 32% in 2005 was increased to 35% effective November 1,2005,
decreasing to 30olo effective on January l, 2009. Because of the change in the corporate income tax
rate, the allowable deduction for interest expense in Section 34(B)(l) is reduced by 42% (from 38%) of
interest income subject to final tax and 33% (from 42%) upon the effectivity of the 30% corporate tax
rate on January l, 2009.

The Company's defened tax asset (liability) consists of:

2019 2018

Deferred trx assets:

Net operating loss carry over (NOLCO)

Net unrealired loss on AFS
Defened tax liaulity:

Revaluation r€serve on real estate

Unrealized foreign erchange gain

Remeas urement gain

?
5,7 04,072

(6212$99)
(437,843)

5,7I1

3,194,131

5,624492

(6,2t2,099)
(782,795)

6nA%)

P

? (940,1s9) ? 1,301,236

25

Curent
Corporate income tax

Deferred

The reconciliation between the corporate income tax and income tax after applying the statutory tax rate
on income tax follows:
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The movements in the deferred income tax account are summarized as follow:

NOLCO
Umalizd gain or

los on AFS

Uorcalizdglnr R61alutioo n*rve. -^-*, |(elllflsuEmefl !finrciS$IUlG,n - Onmldrlr
Tohl

AlJanuary 1,2018

OralBe lo pofit or loss

Charge to daind ramings

Chargd lo olher

cmDtdronsiw intlmo

l 3,6?6,710 ?

(482,59)

(3m,55' r
5,925,041

(e6q507) r
t86,112

(885,{23) ?

121,X3

215,361

(6,2U,099) P 6,690,8v)

5,629,t60

121,563

235,161

At D$mb€t 31,2018

Charge to Fofit $ losr

$age to rchlnd aming

CiaBd to odro

comrrchsnsive imrno

3,r94,8r ?

0,r94,13D

? 5,62\192 ? (82,795) ?

3t4,952

62er9' r (6212,099) ?

52810{

1,30t,236

0,320,9s)

79,580 ?9,580

The details ofNet Operating Loss Carried Over (NOLCO) and its conesponding defened tax asset as of
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019

NOLCO Defend lrr r$d

2018

NoLCO Dlfered hx asset
Year of lncunence Year of Expiration

201,

20t7

2018

8,23?,33i

2,409,11t

2018 I
2020

2t2t
2,471,200

721,,931

4,018,433 ?

8,237,333

2,409,17t

120J,530

2,471,200

122,93t

I P

10,647,10,t I 3,19{,131 I

(l,l94,lll)

14,665,53? I
(4,018,433)Expired N0LCO

Applied N0LC0

?

(10,6,1? ,r0{)

? ? r 10,647,101 I 3,194,13r

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND BOOK VALUE PER SHARE

The computation ofbasic/diluted earnings per share is compuled as follows:

2019 2018

Net profit
Divided by oustanding shares

? 49,287,720 ?
2,500,000 2,500,000

38,974,544

P 19.72 ? 15.59

26

At December 31,2019 I 5,?04,072 ? (,t]?.Eit) ? 5,?ll I (6rt2,099) ? (940,t59)

4,r94,661

(1,205,530)

There were no potential dilutive shares in 20 I 9 and 20 I 8.
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The computation ofbook value per share is computed as follows:

2019 2018

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND OBJECTIVES

The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. This section summarizes these risks and the
way the Company manages them.

Insurance Risk
The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of ths amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insuance contract, this risk is
random and tlerefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance conhacts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contacts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insuance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. lnsurance events are
random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance conffacts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to
be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance
underwriting strategy to diversi! the type of insuance risks accepted and within each of these
categories to achieve a sufhciently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the expected
outcome.

Facto6 that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount of
risk, geographical location and type of indusay covered.

The Company has limited its exposure by imposing maximum claim amount on certain contract as well
as the use ofreinsurance arrangement in order to limit its exposure to catastrophic events (e.9. huricane,
earthquake and flood damage). The purpose ofthese underwritings and reinsurance stmtegies is to limit
exposue to catasaophes based on the management's decision.

Catastrophe loss reserved and released for 2019 consists of:

Catastrophe Loss

Reserved

Catastrophe Loss

Released

Earthquake
Typhoon
Flood

? 3,614J41 ?
97 4,396
917,761

4,08s,500

2,360,700

2,311,778
9',78?5 4? 757

27

Equ,ty ? 506,60E,E60 ? 488.854.562
Divided by oustanding shares 2,500,000 2,500,000

t 202.64 ? 19s.54
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Catastrophe loss reserved and released for 2018 consists of:

Catastrophe Loss

Reserved

Catastrophe Loss

Released

Earthquake

Tlphoon
Flood

P 4,085,500 P

2,360,700
3,393,048

849,292

2 3ll 778 788 302
757 030 642

Property Insurance Contracts Risk
For property insurance contracts, climatic changes give rise to more frequent and severe exfeme
weather events and their consequences. For certain conhacls, the Company has also limited the number
of claims that can be paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any
policy year.

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles
and reject fraudulent claims. These contracts are underwritten by reference to the commercial
replacement value of the properties and contents insured, and claim payment limits are always included
to cap the amount payable on occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of
replacement or indemnity for contents and time taken lo restart operations for business intemrption are

the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies.

C as ualty I nsur ance Ris k
Claims on casualty contracts are payable on a claims-occunence basis. The Company is liable for all
insued events that occured during the term ofthe contract, even ifthe loss is discovered after the end of
the contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled over a long period oftime and a larger element
of the claims provision relates to incurred but not reported claims (IBNR). There are several variables
that affect the amount and timing ofcash flows from these contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent
risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures they adopted.

Reinsurance Risk
In the normal course ofbusiness, the Company limits the amount ofloss on any one policy by reinsuring
certain levels of risk with other insurers. In addition, the Company accepts reinsurance from other
reinsurers. Reinsurance ceded does not discharge the Company's liability as the pdmary insurer. Failure
ofreinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company; consequently, allowances

are established for amounts deemed uncollectible. In order to minimize losses from reinsurer insolyency,

the Company monitors the concentration of credit risk both geographically and with any one reinsurer.

In addition, the Company selects reinsurers with high credit ratings. The effect of reinsurance on

premium income follows:

2019

?8 978 P 5

Direct premium income
Reinsurance assumed

Reinsuance ceded

P 262,535,952 ?
34J44,688

241,498,281
17,859,17 t

(34,9rs,717\(43,17 07)
? 253,701 733 ? 224,44t,735

Financial Risks
The significant risks related to hnancial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(curency and interest rate). The following sections described how the Company manages each of the

risks.

28
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Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a party to a financial instrument vill cause a hnancial loss to the Company by
failing to honor its obligation to the Company. Credit risks are primarily associated with invested assets
and reinsurance counter parties. The Company mitigates credit risk tbrough detailed credit and
underrriting policies and comprehensive due diligence and credit analyses.

The Company's maximum credit exposure related to financial instruments is summarized in the
following tabl€.

2018

Cash and cash equivalents

Premiums due from ceding companies

Reinsurance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Commissions receivable

Premiums reserve withheld by ceding companies

Receivables

Salvage recoverable

Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets

? 239,911

14,529

951,202

57,962

4,492
8J32

534

1,459

356,656

245,873

(in Thousands)

P 189,t70

19,448

57,098

57,60s

5,357

7,628

69s

640

343,03s

261,789

f I 56P 942 465

The Company has assessed the credit quality ofthe following financial assets:

. The Company's premiums and other receivables are actively monitored to avoid significant
concentrations of credit risk.

29

2019

. The credit risk for cash in bank is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable entities
with high quality extemal credit ratings. The credit quallty of this filancial asset is therefore
considered to be high grade. For the determination of oedit risk, cash included in the analysis above

do not include cash on hand amounting to f293,000 and P238,000 for the year 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
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Neither Past Du€
Nor Impaired Past Due But

Not Impaired

2019

ToaalClass A Class B Class C

Cssh and c{sh equivalrnts
Premiums

Recrivables

Due from ceding companies
Reserve withheld by

ceding companies
Reinsurance recoverable

on losses

Commission receivable
Srlvrge recovemble
Receivables

Finencial assets

Held-to-maturity
Available-for-sale

P 239,911,006 ?

57,962,147

t62,755

698,090

t,934,5t2

856,917

3,164,150

t2431,578

6,116,E84

948,037,884

180,407

533,530

P P ? 239,911,006

s1,962,141

14,528,845

8,331,891

818,61I
4,311,865

640383

356,656,100

245,873,041
356,656,100
245,873,041

? 902,087,7s0 ? 5,955,579 ? 967,960,283 ? 4,952,348 p 1,880,955,960

Class A Class B Class C

Neither Past Due

Nor lmpated Past Due But
Not lmpaired

2018

Total

Cxsh atrd cssh equiv{lcnts ?
Premiums

Receivable

Due from ceding companies

Reserve withheld by
ceding compaflies

Reinsuratrce recoverable
on losses

Commission rec€ivable
Sslvage recoverable
R€ceivnbles

Finrnci{l sssets

Held-to-maturity
Available-for-sale

189,169,876 ?

57,604,986

57,098,180

818,972

343,034,840

261,788,969

P P ? tE9,169,876

57,604,986

19,448,59719,448,591

7,628,197

139,165 86,834 4,311,865

640,483

695,2i

1,628,197

343,034,840

26t,1E8,969

? 909,515,823 ? 139,t65 ? 27,163$2t ? 5,647,559 ? 942,466,175

Credit Quality - In monitoring and controlling credit extended to counterparty, the Company adopts a

comprehensive credit rating system based on financial and non-hnancial assessments ofits borrowers.
Financial factors being considered comprised ofthe financial standing ofthe borrower while the non-
financial aspects include but not limited to the assessment ofthe borowers nature ofbusiness, industry
background, payment habit and both present and potential business dealings with the Company.

Class A "High Grade" are accounts with strong financial capacity and business performance and with
the lowest default risk.

Class B "Moderate Grade" refer to accounts of satisfactory Frnancial capability and credit standing but
with some elements of risk where certain measure of confol is necessary in order to mitigate risk of
default.

30

As ofDecember 31,2019 and 2018, the aging analysis ofthe Compa.ny's receivables is as follows:

951,202,034
4,492,212

1,459,094

533,530

s7,09t,180
5,356,836

640,483

695,211

Class C "Low Crade" refer to accounts which are collected on their due dates provided that the

Company made a persistent effort to collect them.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to fund all cash outflow commitments as they
fall due. The Company generally maintains a conservative liquidity position that exceeds all the
Iiabilities payable on demand. The Company invests in various types of assets with a view of matching
them with its liabilities of various durations. To strengthen its liquidity fruther, the Company actively
manages and monitors its capital and assets levels, diversification and credit quality of its investments
and cash forecasts and actual amounts against established targets. The Company also maintains liquidity
contingency plans for the management ofliquidity in the event ofa liquidity crisis.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Companies financial liabilities as of December
31, 2019 and 2018.

Current Non.current
Within

6 months
6to12
months

1to5
years

2019

Total

Payibl€s
Claims pryable
PremiuIns

Due to reinsurers
Reserve for uneamed
Reserve withheld

for reinsuers
Commission payable

OtherE (erclnding tax liabiliti.s)

? 2,283,778 ? 2,283,178

977,156,101

30,243,123
t25,588,273

P ?

30,245,r23

977,156,101

125,588,273

? 32,528,901 F 1,195,591 922 ? ? r,228 120

Current Non-cunent
within

6 months
6tol2
months

Ito5
yeaIS

2018

Total

Payablcs
Claims paysble

Pramiums

Due to reinsurerc

Reserve for uneamed

Reserve withtreld
for reinsuers

Commission payable

Othcrs (?rclu ding lax liab ililies)

? 4,885,878 ?

31,407,7 49

8t,1t9.874
4,885,878

at,719,874

31,407,149

114,145,023

2,517 220
41,037Br3
33,238,623

P ?

t14.145,023

2,577,220

4r,037,913
33,238,623

? 36,293,627 ? r5s,996,410 ? 116,722,243 ? 309,012,280

Foreign Cunency Risk
The Company's foreign currency risk results primarily from movement of the Philippine Peso (PHP)

against the United States dollar. The Company resolved to mitigate this risk by taking adyantage of
market trends. Proper timing is adhered in order to realize a foreign currency gain.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk results primarily from the movements of the Philippine peso against

the United States (J.S.) Dollar that arises from the Company's cash and cash equivalents and held to

matudty financial assets, which are denominated in U.S. Dollars. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

currency exchange rates used to translate U.S. Dollar denominated flnancial assets and liabilities
amounted to P50.635 and P52.724, respectively.

3l

2,571,220 - 2,517,220

33,944,050 33,944,0s0
56,326,278 56,326,218



EMPIR"E INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below summarizes the Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk as ofDecember 31, 2019
and 2018. Included in the table are the Company's assets at carrying amounts, categorized by currency.

2019 2018
USD PHP USD PHP

? 1 P I2 7 5,522

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,195,658 ? 111,177,143 $ t,7t5,522 ? 90,449,209
Heldlo-maturi 9 r00 660 797

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar rate,
with all variable held constant, of the Company's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets ) and the Company's equity.

US $ Depreciates

2019 2018

S

Effoct on profit before tax

Effect on equity
$ 671,334 $

469934

2,375,522

1,662,86s

(611,334)

(469,934)
s (2,37s,522)

(t,662,865)
$

lnteresl rate risk
The Company's exposure to market risk for changes in intercst rates relates to the Company's held-to-
mahrrity investments.

The Company's policy is to manage its interest income using fixed rates receivable.

Interest risk to which financial assets are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash
flows or fair value of financial assets because of a change in market interest rates. Interest is managed
principally using mixed of fixed and variable rate receivable.

Financial assets exposed to interest rate risk follow:

Variable Fixed Total

As ofDeccmber 31, 2019

Financial assets:

Held-to investments ? ? 356 100 ? 656,t00

Variable Fixed Total

As ofDecember 31, 2018

Finaflcial assets:

Held-to-naturiry-llv$@qll ? ? 343,034,8{0 ? 343,034,840

The term and maturity profile of the interest bearing financial assets of the Company, together \ ith its
corresponding nominal amounts and carrying values, are shown in the following table:

Inter.st lerm

Ratc

firirC

Dcriod

Nominal Carying

l-5 years

3s6,656.100

A! of Dlc.mber ll, 2019

Held-tcmatu rty Fixed at the

invesnn.nts &te of

investm€nt 31025 ? 356,6s6,100 220,667.500

>5

35.988,600 ?
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Interest term

Rate

firing
period

Nominal

< I vcsr l-5 vears

Carrybg

A! of D.cemb€r 3l, 2018

Hcld-tGmaturity Fi\ed !l rhc

inyestncnts dat6 of

itrveshrat Ito25 ? 91,870,000 251,164,840 I 34J,034,840

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Company's income before income tax as ofDecembei 3l, 2019 and
2018.

2019 2018

Effect on income
statement

Effect on income

statomentEffect on f,quity Effect on Equity

Increase in basis points (+100)

Decrease in basis points G100)

? 3,s80,348 ?
(3,s80,348)

2,864,278 ?
(2,8642781

3,418,370 P
(3,418,370)

2;134,696
(2,734,696\

Equity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to equity pdce risk arising from available-for-sale investments.

The available-for-sale investments are revalued on each reporting period end based on quoted market
prices. Any resulting fair value gains or losses arising fiom the revaluation of the available-for-sale

investments are recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income. Available-for-sale
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be

reliably measure are measured at cost less any impairment losses at end ofeach reporting period.

Fair Value Measurement
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Financial Instruments Whose Carrying Amount Approxinate Fair Value
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, premiums due fiom ceding companies,
reinsurance recoverable on losses, premiums receivable, commission receivable, premiums

reserve witbleld by ceding companies, receivables, other current assets, salvage recoverable,

claims payable, premium due to reinsurers, commission payable, reserve for unearned premiums,

payables, premium reserve withheld for reinsurers, bonus payable, credits to clients, documentary

stamps payable and fire service tax payable which are all subject to normal trade credit terms and

are short-term in nature, approximate their fair values.

Available for Sale Financial Assets

The Company's available for sale financial assets are quoted equity securities that carried at their
fair values as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. Fair value of available for sale financial assets is

based on the closing quoted prices of stock investments published by the Insurance Commission
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The following table presents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value at December
3 t ,2019.

Fair v!lue measurement using

Quoted prices in
active markets

(Level 1)

Significant
observable inputs

Significant
unobservable

inputs
Total

(Lelel 2) (Level3)

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

Equity securities P 229,088,041 P -? - ? 229,088,041

There are no hnancial instruments carried at fair value underLevels 2 and 3 during the year

The following table presents the Company's assets that are measured at fair value at December
31, 2018.

Fair vilue measurement using

Quoted prices in
active markets

Significant
observable inputs

Significant
unobservable

inputs

(kvel 3)

Total

(Level I ) (Level 2)

Available-for-sale fi nancial assets

securities

There are no fllancial instruments caried at fair value under Levels 2 and 3 dudng the year

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Company's financial statements in a recurring basis,

the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization Oased on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end ofeach reporting period. There were no tsansfers that occurred between level 1, level 2

and level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and nonrecurring
fair value measurements.

For the pur?ose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes ofassets and liabilities on

the basis ofthe nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

? 245 969 ? ? 9
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The carrying values and fair values of the Company's financial assets and liabilities per category fie as
follows:

2019 2018

Cerrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Canying

Afiount
Fair

Value

Assets

Cash and oash equivalents

Prcmiums due fiom ceding companies

Reinsuance recoverable on losses

Premiums receivable

Conrmission recrivable

Premiums reserve witbheld by ceding companies

Receivables

Other curent ass€ts

Salvage recoverable

Availablcfor-sale investnmts

(in thousands)

240?,10 ? 189,408 P

r4,s29 19,448

951?02 57,098

s7,962 57,605

4,492 5.357

8J32 7,628

s34 695

22311 2t,703

1,459 640

l6JEs 16,785

f 240,210 ?
14,529

951,202

57,962

4,492

8J32
534

2231t
1,459

16,7E5

189,408

t9,448

57,098

57,605

5,351

7,628

69s

2t,703
u0

r6,785

? 1,317,816 ? 1,317,E16 ? 376.367 ? 376,361

2018

Carrying
Amount

Fair

Value

Liabilities
Claims payable

Premium due to reinsuers

Commission payable

Reserve for urcamed premiums

Payables

Premium reserve withheld for reinswers

Bonuses payable (Se€ Not€ 15)

Credits to clients (See Note 15)

f 977,t56 ?
30,215

33,944

125,538

2,2t4
2,571

9198
31,8t7

977,156 ?
3014s
33,944

r2s588
2484
2577
9,498

31,847

8r,720 P

3 r,408

41,038

I14,145

4,886

2,577

6,410

16,245

81,720

31,408

4t,038
I14,145

4,886

2,571

6,470

t6,245
? l,2t3,lt9 ? 1,213,139 ? 298,489 P 298,489

C apit ql Ris k Management
The Company has established the following capital management objectives, policies and approach to
managing the risks that affect its capital position:

. To maintain the requircd level of stability of the Company thereby providing a degree of security to
policyholders.

. To allocate capital efficiently and support the development of business by ensuring that returns on

capital employed meet the requirements ofits capital ploviders and ofits shareholders.
. To retain the financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital

markets.
o To align the profile of assets and liabilities taking account of risks inherent in the business

. To maintain financial strength to satisry the requtements of the policyholders, regulatorc and

shareholders.
. To maintain strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives

and maximize shareholders value.
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The operations of the Company are also subject to regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions in
which it operates. Such r€gulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring activities, but also
impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., capital adequacy) to minimize the risk of default and
insolvency on the part ofthe insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as they arise.

In reporting financial strength, capital and solvency are measured using the rules prescribed by the
Insurance Commission of the Philippines.

Capitalizqtion Requirements for Life, Non-Life, ond Reinsurance Companies (Republic Act No. 10607)
Republic Act No. 10607 known as the Amended Insurance Code requires that no new domestic life or
non-life insurance company shall, in a stock corporation, engage in business in the Philippines unless
possessed of a paid up capital equal to at least One Billion Pesos (?1,000,000,000). Provided that a
domestic insurance company already doing business in the Philippines shall have a net worth by June 30,
2013 of Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (?250,000,000). Furthermore, said company must have by
December 31,2016 M additional Three Hundred Million Pesos (?300,000,000) in net worth; by
December 31, 2019, an additional Three Hundred Fifty Million Pesos (P350,000,000) in net worth; and
by December 31, 2022, an additional four Hundred Million Pesos @400,000,000) in net worth.

Minimum Networth
P550,000,000

900,000,000
1,300,000,000

Compliance Date
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2022

The statutory net worth of life, non-life, and reinsuance companies shall include the Company's paid-up
capital, unimpaired surplus, retained earnings, and reyaluation increments as may be approved by the
Insurance Commissioner.

As at December 31, 2019, the Company has not complied with the externally imposed new statutory
minimum net worth requirement for Non-life insurance companies of?900 million during the reporting
period. The Company is in the process ofcomplying the said capital requirement.

The capital straclure of the Company consisls of equily attributable to equity holders comprising issued
capital and retained earnings.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the period.

Unimp air ed C apit al Requirem ent
The lnsurance Commission provided that for purposes of determining compliance with the law, rules
and regulations requiring that the paid-up capital should remain intact and unimpaired at all times, the
statement of financial position should show that the net worth or stockholder's equity is at least equal to
the actual paid-up capital.

2019 2018

Networth
Paid-up capital

? 706,608,860 ?
4s0,000,000

688,854,562
450,000,000

Effective 2017, the new regulatory requfuements namely, Financial Reporting Framework (FRF),
Valuation Standards for Insurance Policy Reseryes, and New Risk-based capital ftamework (RBC2) will
be fully implemented. ln 2015, the Insuance Commission conducted parallel runs, the purpose ofwhich
is to allow the insurance industry to assess the collective impact of implementing these new regulatory
requirements simultaneously. This will allow the IC an oppomrnity to engage the industry in a

meaningful dialogue and obtain feedback prior to the full implementation.
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and 2018:
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Ris k- b as ed C ap i tal Re quirements
Insurance Memorandum circular (IMC) 7-2006 provides for the Risk-based capital (RBC) framework
for the nonlife insurance industry to establish the required amounts of capital to be maintained by the
companies in relation to their investment and insurance risk. Every nonlife insurance company is
annually required to maintain a minimum RBC ratio of 100% and not fail the tlend test. Failure io meet
the minimum RBC ratio shall subject the insurance company to the corresponding regulatory
intervention which has been defned at various levels.

On June 10, 2015, the lnsurance Commission issued Circular Letter No. 2015-30 requiring all non-tife
insurance to participate in parallel runs for the RBC 2-QIS (Quantitative impact Study).

Cicular Letter No. 2015-29 prescribes the new financial reporting framework (FRF) thal will be used
for the statutory quarterly and annual reporting. This includes rules and regulations conceming Titles III
and IV of Chapter III of the Amended Insurance Code and all the other accounts not discussed in the
Amended Insurance Code but are used in accounting of insumnce and reinsurance companies.

Circular Letter 2015-32 Valuation Standards for Non-Life Insurance Policy Reserves, prescribes the new
valuation methodology for the nonlife insurance companies. No-life insurance companies will be
changing the basis of valuation oftheir nonJife insurance reserves. In addition to the uneamed premium
reserves, the concept of unexpired risk reserves is also included in the calculation of the premium
liability. The incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves will now be computed using actuarial projection
techniques such as but not limited to the chain ladder method, expected loss ratio method and
Bomheutter-Ferguson method. A margin for adverse deviation is provisionally set at 10% dudng the
parallel mns and shall be incorporated on both premiums and claims liability valuation. Discount mtes to
be used shall be based on the latest PDST-R2 rates and the Bloomberg IYC Curve for Php and USD-
denominated policies, respectively.

Circular Letter No. 2015-31 discussed the hansition period and full implementation requirements for
FRF, valuation standards for insurance policy reserves and new risk-based capital {lamework. The new
regulatory requirements in the Circulars shall take effect after a transition period, the purpose ofwhich is
to allow the insurance industry to assess the collective impact of implementing FRF, Reserving and

RBC2-QIS simultaneously. Full implementation will be June 30,2016 with transition cut-off date as at

January 1,2016.

Consolidated Compliance Framework
IMC t0-2006 integrated the compliance standards lor the fixed capitalization and RBC framework. The

fixed capitalization requirement for a given pedod may be suspended for insurers that comply with the

required RBC hurdle rate, provided that the industry complies with the required Industry RBC Ratio
Compliance Rate. The IMC provides the annual schedule of progessiye rates for the Industry RBC
Ratio Compliance Rates and the RBC Hurdle Rates from 2007 to 201l. For the review year 201I which
shall be based on the 2010 synopsis, the Industry RBC Ratio Compliance Rate is 90% and the RBC
Hurdle Rate is 250%.

On June 1,2012, the DOF issued DOF Order l5-2012 which provides that after 7012, compliance with
prescribed minimum paid-up capital requhement may be deferred for existing insurers that meet the

RBC hurdle rate of 150%. Failure to achieve one ofthe rates will result in the imposition ofthe fixed
capitalization requiements for the period under review.

The RBC ratio is calculated by dividing the net worth by the RBC requirement.
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Pursuant to IC CL No.2017-15, Regulatory Requtements and Actions for the New Regulatory
Framework, effective January l, 2017, nonlife insurance companies are required to maintain minimum
RBC2 requirement as prescribed under IC CL No. 2016.68, Amended Risk-Based Capital (RBC2)
Framework. Under the RBC2 Framework, the RBC ratio shall be calculated as total available capital
divided by the RBCz requirement.

The following table shows the RBC ratio as ofDecember 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

? 706,606,860

358,351,292

? 688,854,562
96,476,705

RBC ratio 197V" '7 t4%

The fnal RBC ratio can be determined only after the accounts ofthe Company have been examined by
IC specifically as to admitted and non-admitted assets as delmed under the Code.

A dmitted/N on-Admitt ed As s ets
Under Section 202 and 203 of R.A. 10607 which seeks to strengthen the insurance industry in the
Philippines prescribed admitted and non-admitted assets in the determination of the financial condition
ofany insurance company doing business in the Philippines details ofwhich follow:

2019 2018

PRF'S

Prcperty and equipment - net ofaccumulqted depreciation
Building
Transportation e4uipment
Electronic data processing machine

Fumiture, fi)cures and equipment

Building imp rovement s

Leasehold and imp rovements

20,706,999 ?
2,779,549

608,209

988,592

800,255
194,654

20,706,999

t,240,190
301,767
512,233

786,678
178,963

26,O78,258 23,726,830

SectioD 203 ofthe New Insuratrce Code
Non- admitled proryrty and equipment

Transp ortation equipmgnt
Fumitures, lDdures and other offic€ equipment

? 2,779,549 ?
988,s92
194,654

1,240,190

512,233
178,963Leasehold and imp rovements

3,962,795 1,931,386

Section 202 ofthe New Iosurance Code
Alloved and admilted assels ? 22,1t5,463 ? 21,795,444
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2019 2018

PTRS
Cunent tax assets

Other current assets

P 3,521,227 ?
22,310,812

1,727,698

2l 103 165

25,832,039 23,430,863

Section 203 ofth€ New Insurance Code

Non admitled other clttrent and tu assels

Prepaid investment expense

Curent tax assets

5,992,611

3,521,227

9,445,162

t,727,698
9,513,844 l1,172,860

Section 2 ofthe New Insurance Code

Allowed and adnitted assets

2019 2018

PFRS
Pension asset

Other non-curenl assets

PP 843,119
448,863

Section 203 ofthe New Insurance Cod€
Non admitted other non cutent assets

Deferred charges - MCIT
Defer€d tax asset - net
Plan ass€ts

Verification fund
Refundable deposits
Taxss firnd

nsurance

Allora/ed and admitted assets

8,621,284

3,090,526
462,609
779 142

843,119
887,895
334,826

3

P

443

1,288,407 P |,288;739

26. DIVIDENDRESTRICTION

Dividends to stockholders which the Company may declare are subject to the provision of insurance law
which stipulates that no such dividends may be distributed unless they originated from the excess profits

after considering retention equivalent to the paid - up capital, the margin of solvency, the legal reserve

fund, and all losses that may be incurred in settlement of liabilities for taxes and expenses.

27. SOLVENCYREQUIREMENTS

An insurance company doing business in the Philippines shall at all times maintain the minimum paid'up

capital and net worth requirements as prescribed by the Commissioner. Such solvency requirements shall

be based on internationally accepted solvency frameworks and adopted only after due consultation with
the insurance industry associations.

28. SECIruTY FUND CONTRIBUTION

All insurance companies doing business in the Philippines shall contribute to the Secudty Fund the

aggregate amount of P5,000,000. The contributions ofthe companies shall be in direct proportion to the

companies' aggregate net worth as shown in their latest financial statements.

i9

? 16J18,195 P 12,258,003

4,230,960

2i"|;TIE;



EMPIRE INSI'RANCE COMPAIYY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. CONTINGENCIES, COMMITMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Contingencies
The Company is a party litigant in a case pending in the Regional Trial Court. As at December 31, 2019,
the outcome of the case is uncertain. According to the Company's legal counsel, they have a good
chance of winning the case.

Companlt as lessee

The Company entered into various lease agreements on its branch office space ranging from I years.
Management has determined that it does not retain the significant risks rewards of ownership of the
properties and has classified the leases as operating leases. The lease agreements of some branches
include upward escalation adjustment on annual rental rates.

In 2019 and 2018, the total "Rentals" under "General and Administrative Expenses" amounted to
P1,673,559 and ?1,306,095, respectively.

30. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Covid 19 pandemic has no big effect in the business compared to the same period of last year
especially in the production aspect, because most of the existiag clients renewed their accounts. But the
company lost the potential new businesses. The collection of premiums is good, because the clients are
paying their insurances thru online banking. Business with other insurance companies did not sufler as

well because ofcontinuous communication and trust established over a long period of time.

The more significant accounting policies and practices ofthe Company are summarized below to facilitate
the understanding of data presented in the financial statements.

Basis of Preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS includes all applicable PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PAS) and interpretation, which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC) and adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including SEC

pronouncements.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for available-

for-sale investments and a certain property that have been measured at fair value. The Company's
financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, which is the functional and presentation currency
under PFRS. All values are rounded to the neaxest peso except as otherwise indicated.

The preparation of hnancial statements in conformity with PFRS requtes lhe use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise itsjudgment in the process ofapplying the

Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgment or complexity, or areas

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 32.

Current versus Non-current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on currenvnon-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose oftrading

40

31. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements ofthe Company have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS.
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A liability is current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
o It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
o There is no rurconditional right to defer the settlement ofthe liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures fxlancial instruments at fair value at each financial position date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based

on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ln the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use ofrelevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in actiye markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoled prices included within level I that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
Level 3- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs)

Chanses in untirs Policies
The following explains the significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of
the fi nancial statements.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these

financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as explained below.

. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-crment.

4l
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New and ame[ded standa s adoDted bv the ComDanY
The Company has applied the following applicable new and revised accounting standards except
otherwise as stated. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial.
year.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January l, 2019:

PFRS 16. Zeases
Under the new standard, Iessees will no longer classi$ their leases as either operating or finance leases
in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, Leases will apply the single-asset model, wherein lessees will
recognize the assets and the related liabilities for most leases in their balance sheets and, subsequently,
will depreciate lhe lease assets and recognize interest on th€ lease liabilities in their profit or loss. The
accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the principles of
lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose more information in their
financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual value.

These amendments have no significant impact on the Company's fnancial performance and fmancial
position.

PFRS 9 (Amendmefis), Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
Under PFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value though other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flolvs are 'solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding' (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held within the
appropriate business model for that classification. The amendments to PFRS 9 clarifl that a financial
asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless ofthe event or circumstance that causes the early termination
of the contract and irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the early
termination of the contract.

Classilicalion and Measuremenl o/ Financisl assels and Litbililies

PFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortized
cost, FVOCI and FVTL. The classification of financial assets under PFRS 9 is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

PFRS 9 eliminates the previous PAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and

available for sale. Under PFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where the host is hnancial asset in
the scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is

assessed for classification.

PFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in PAS 39 for the classification and measurement of
hnancial liabilities. The adoption of PFRS t has not had a significant effect on the Company's
accounting policies related to financial liabilities.

These amendments have no impact on the Company's hnancial statements.

PAS l9 (Amendments), Plan Amendment, Cartailmenl or Seltlement
The amendments to PAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

occus during a reporting period. The amendments speciry that when a plan amendment, cuiailment or
settlement occurs during the arurual reporting period, an entity is required to:

Determine current service cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used to remeaswe the net defined

benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after
that event
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Determine net interest for the remainder ofthe period after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement using: the net defiled benefit liability (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the
plan and the plan assets after that event; and the discount rate used to remeasure that net defined
benefit liability (asset).

The amendments also clarif tiat ar entity frst determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, without considering the effect ofthe asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.
An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts hcluded in the net interest, is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

These amendments have no significant impact on the Company's financial performance and financial
position.

PAS 28 (Amendments) Longlerm interests in associates andjoint venlures
The amendments clarifr that an entity applies PFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant because it implies that
the expected credit loss model in PFRS 9 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying PFRS 9, an entity does not take account ofany losses of
the associate orjoint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjusbnents
to the net investment in the associate or joint ventue that arise from applying PAS 28 Investments in
Associates qnd Joint Venlures,

These amendments are not applicable and have no significant impact on the Company's financial
performance.

Annual Improvement 2016 - 2018 Cycle

PFRS 3 Basrn ess Combinqtions
The amendments clari$/ that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it
applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, including remeasuring
previously held interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. In doing so, the

acquirer remeasures its entire previously held interest in the joint operation.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impact on the Company's flnancial
performance.

PFRS ll Joint Arrangements
A party that participates in, but does not have joint control ol a joint operation might obtain joint control
ofthejoint operation in which the activity ofthejoint operation constitutes a business as defined in IFRS

3. The amendments clariry that the previously held interests ir that joint operation are not remeasured.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no signihcant impact on the Company's hnancial

performance.

PAS 12 (Amendments\, Recognition of Deferred Tae Assets for Unrealbed Losses

The amendments clari$, the accounting for deferred tax assels for unrealized losses on debt instruments

measures at fair value.

These amendments are haye no significant impact on the Company's financial performance and financial
position.
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These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impact on the Company's financial
performance.

IFRIC Interpretation 23. Uncertainty over lncotne Tax Treatnenl
The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatment involve uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments.

The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately
The assumptions an entity makes about the examination oftax treatments by taxation authodties
How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits

and tax rates
How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertain tax teatment separately or together with
one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty should be followed.

These amendments are not applicable and have no significant impact on the Company's financial
performance and fi nancial position.

Effective besinning on or after Januarv l. 2020

Amendments to PFRS 3. Defnitioz o./Business
The amendments to PFRS 3 were issued to help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is a business or not. The amendments clari$ the minimum requirement to a business, remove
the assessment ofa market participant's ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition of
outputs. The amendments add guidance whether an acquired process is substantive and add illustmtive
examples. The amendments introduce an optional concentration test to permit a simplified assessment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2020 and
apply prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impact on the Company's financial
performance.

Amendments to PAS I and PAS8. Definition of Material
The amendments were issued to clariry and align the deflnition of material. The amendments are

intended to improve the understanding ofthe existing requhements rather than to significantly impact an

entity's materiality judgments. The amendments must be applied prospectively for annual period
beginning on or after January l, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

These amendments are not applicable and will have no significant impact on the Company's hnancial
performance.

P AS 23 Borrowing Costs
The amendments clariry that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any bonowing originally
made to develop a qualirying asset when substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.
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. A specific adaptation for contracts with diect participation featues (the variable fee approach)
o A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with compamtive
figures required. Early application is permitted provided the entity also applies PFRS 9 and PFRS 15 on
or before the date it first applies PFRS 17.

PFRS 10, Cozsal#ated Financial Statenenls, and PAS 28,Itwestments in Associates and Joinl yentures

- Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exceptior, (Amendmenls)

These amendments clari! that the exemption in PFRS l0 from presenting consolidated fmancial
statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity that measures all of its
subsidiaries at fair value and that only a subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment
entity itself and that provides support services to the investment entity parent is consolidated. The
amendment also allow an investor (that is not an investment entity and has an investment entity associate

or joint venture), when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate orjoint ventw€ to its int€rests in subsidiaries.

These amendments are not applicable and have no significant impact on the Company since the

Company is not an investment entity nor does it have investrnent entity associates.

An entity must determine whether to consider each uncertah tax heatment separately or together with
one or more other uncertain tax heatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the

uncertainty should be followed. The interpretation is effectiye for annual reporting periods begiming on

or after I January 2019, but certain transition reliefs are available. The Company will apply
interpretation from its effective date. In addition, the Company may need to establish processes and

procedues to obtain information that is necessary to apply the lnterpretation on a timely basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are temporary placements with maturity of
less than three (3) months which can be withdrawn anytime depending on the immediate cash

requirement of the Company

Investmeht Contracls
lnsurance premiums are recognized directly as tiabilities. Revenue consists offees deducted for policy
administration and surrender charges. Interest or changes in the unit prices credited to the account

balances and excess benefit claims incurred in the period are charged as expenses in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Company, however, has no investment contracts.
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Effective for annual periods beginnins on or after Januarv 1. 2022:

PFRS 17. Insurance Controcts
In May 2017, the PASB issued PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (PFRS l7), a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and
disclosure. Once effective, PFRS l7 will replace PFRS 4 Insuance Conhacts (PFRS 4) that was issued
in 2005. PFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-
insurance), regardless ofthe type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial
instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply. The overall objective ofPFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model
for insurance contracts that is more usefirl and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in
PFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS l7 provides
a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of
PFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

The Company is still assessing its effect on its financial performance and frnancial position.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (DAC)
commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts fie deferred and charged to expense in proportion t ti" pre.ir.."r.nu"
recognized. Subsequently, these costs are amortized over thi terms oi thi poticies as premium is eamea
on a shaight line basis using the 246 method over the life ofthe contract except for marine cargo where
commissions for the last two months of the year are recognized as expense the followi-ng year.
Amortization is charged against the statement of profrt or loss. The unamortized acquisition co"sts are
shown in the assets section of the statement of financial position. All other costs are recognized as
expense when incurred.

A review on impairment is performed at each end of the reporting period or more liequently when an
indication of impairment arises. The carrying value is written down to the recoverable amount and the
impairment loss is charged to the statement ofprofit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Li abil ity A dequacy Tes t
At each financial position date, liability adequacy tests are perlormed to ensue the adequacy of the
conhact liabilities net of related DAC. In performing these tests, current best estimates of future
contracnlal cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income
fiom the assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to profit or
Ioss initially by witing off DAC and by subsequently establishing a provision for losses arising from
liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision).

Any DAC witten offas a result ofthis test cannot subsequently be reinstated.

Reinsuranc e C ontr acts He ld
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which it is compensated for losses on one
or more contracts issued by the Company and meet the classification requhements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification
requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance conhacts entered into by the Company under
which the contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance contacts.
The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contmcts held are recognized as

reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables thal are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsued insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently
with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance
contracts and are recognized as an expense when due.

Receivables and Payables related to lnsurance Contracts and Inveslment Contracts
Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,

brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognized that impairment loss in the

statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The Company gathers the objective
evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and

receivables. The impairment loss is also calculated under the same method used for these hnancial
assets.

Financial Assets
Financial assets include cash and other financial instruments. Financial assets, other than hedging

instruments, are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. The designation of financial assets

is re-evaluated at every reporting date at which date a choice of classification or accounting treatment is

available, subject to compliance with specific provisions ofapplicable accounting standards.
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All fmancial assets are recogniz€d on their trade date. All financial assets that are not classified at a fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognized at faf value plus transaction costs.

The foregoing categories of financial instruments are more ftlly described below.

Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets are classified as at fair value though profit or loss if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term or if so designated by- the management. Derivatives assets, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified as at fair value thrcugh profrt or loss unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets at fair value tkough profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value. Transactions costs
incurred for the acquisition ofthe f[rancial assets are directly expensed outright.

Subs equent m easur ement
Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fah value recognized in profit or loss. Financial assets originally designated as financial
assets at fair value tbrough profit or loss may not subsequently be reclassified.

The Company has no investrnent classified under this category.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and lxed maturities that
are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resale and are not classified as other financial assets held for tading, designated as AFS financial
assets or securities at FVPL.

Initial recognition and measurement
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are dbectly
athibutable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial asset. The fair value of the loan receivable at
initial recognition is normally the hansaction price, meaning the amount ofthe loan granted.

Subs equent m easur ement
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measued at amortized cost using the
EIR method, allowances or reversals ofallowances being made where necessary on remeasuring.

I mp airment of F inanci ql As s ets

A loan and receivable is deemed impaired when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on

loan and receivables has been incuned. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization process.

Loans and receivables includes cash and cash equiyalents, premiums due from ceding companies,

reinsurance recoverable on losses, premiums receivable, commission receivable, premiums reserve

withhetd by ceding companies, salvage recoverable and other receivables in the statement of financial
position.

Available-for-Sal Financial Assets

Financial assets of the Company include available-for-sale financial assets. AFS financial assets are

those non-derivative frnancial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the three

other categories. AFS financial assets include financial assels nol quoted in an active market and are

classified as AFS when purchased and held indefrnitely, but which the Company anticipates to sell in
response to liquidity requirements or in anticipation of changes in interest rates or other factors.

Financial assets may be designated under this category provided such are nol held for trading.
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Initial recognition and measurement
AI'S financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. The fair value ofinvestments that are actively
traded in organized financial markets is determined by refer€nce to quoted market bid prices at the close
ofbusiness as at the date of financial position. AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value canaot be reliably measure are measured at cost less any
impairment losses at end of each reporting period.

Subs equent measur ement
After initial recognition, changes in the fair value of AFS financial assets are recognized in equity,
except for the foreign exchange fluctuations on AFS debt securities and the related effective interest
which are taken directly to the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. These
changes in fair values are recognized in equity until the investrnent is sold, collected or otherwise
disposed of, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulatiye gain or
loss previously reported in equity are included in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of hnancial assets is impaired. A furancial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event')
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows ofthe hnancial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliabty estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other lurancial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable deuease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

In case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets, objectiye €vidence would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. When a
decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized in other
comprehensive income reserve account and there is objective evidence thal the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income reserve account is reclassified
from other comprehensive income reserve account to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even

though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The amount of the cumulative loss that is

reclassified from other comprehensive income account to profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses

recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument are not reversed in profit or loss.

Subsequent increases in the fair value after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive
income reserve account.

ln the case of debt instruments classified as APS, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as

financial assets canied at amortized cost. Interest continues to be accrued at the original effective interest
rate on the reduced carrying amount ofthe asset and is recorded as pa of interest income in the profit or
loss. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increased and the increase can be

objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the profit or loss,

the impairment loss is reversed through the profit or loss.

Held-to-Maturitv F inancial Assets

HTM financial assets include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and

fixed maturities for which the Company's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Wlere the Company sells other than an insignificant amount of HTM financial assets, the

entire category would be tainted and classified as AFS furancial assets.
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lnitial recognition and measurement
Held-to-maturity financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus transactions costs that are
directly athibutable to the acquisition or issuance of the fmncial asset. The fair value is usually the
actual hansaction price on the transactiotr date.

The carrying amount ofthe asset is reduced through the use ofan allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized under "asset impairmenf in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. It in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occrming after the irnpairment was recognized, the previously recogoized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized in the statements proflt or loss and other ofcomprehensive income, to
the extent that the carrying value ofthe asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Ifa
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss.

Financiql liabilities
All financial liabilities are initially recognized at the fair value ofthe consideration received less directly
attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss

when the liabilities are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortiztion process.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value of the consideration received less directly
attributable costs. After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effectiye interest method. When liabilities are impaired or derecognized, any gain and losses are

recognized in the profit or loss.

Included in this category are the Company's claims payables, premiums due to reinsurers, commission
payable, reserved for unearned premiums, premiums reserve withheld for reinsurers and other payables
(except for tax liabilities).

The Company has no designated financial liability at FVPL.

tion ofFinanco

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar hnancial
assets) is derecognized or removed from the Company's statements of financial position where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

. the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; or

. the Company has transfer its right to receive cash flows fiom the asset and either (a) has transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transfened nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has transfened control ofthe asset.
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Subs equent measurem ent
Held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. In addition, if there is objective evidence that the investment has been impaired, the
financial asset is measured at the present value of estimated cash flows. Any changes to the carrying
amount ofthe investment are recognized in profit or loss.

lmpairment of Financial Assets
Ifthere is objective evidence that a financial assets carried at amortized cost is impaired, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate ofthe financial asset.

Other F inanc i al Li ab il ities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL
upon the inception ofthe liability. These include liabilities arising from operations or bonowings.
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Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transfened coniol of the
asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Company could be required to repay.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized or derecognized on trade date, the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. At initial measuement, financial insfuments are
measured equal to their fair value including transaction costs. Transactions costs incurred at a

subsequent date related to the transfer or disposal of a financial instrument are not included in the
subsequent measurement ofthe financial instrument. Such costs are only included in the statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income when de-recognition occurs. Financial assets are

derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expLed or have been

transferred and the Company has transfened substantially all risks and rewards ofownership.

Finqncia| Liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when and only when obligation under liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing hnancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is tseated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit or loss.

Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
hnancial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

As at December 31,2019 and 2018, the Company is not offsetting financial instruments in accordance

with PAS 32 and does not have relevant offsetting arrangements. The Company is presenting its

financial assets and financial liabilities at gross amounts in the statement offinancial position.

Other lnvestments
Other investments which include real estate acquired and the Company's contribution to the Security

Fund are stated at cost. These are included in other non-curr€nt assets.

lmnairment of Reinsurance Conkacts
The Company assumes reinsurance risk in the normal course of business for nonlife insurance contracts

when applicable. Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognized as revenue or expenses in

the same manner as they would be ifthe reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account

the product classification of the reinsured business. Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to

reinsurance companies. Amourts payable are estimated in a manner consistent with the related

reinsurance contract.

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both c€ded and assumed reinsurance.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired

or when the contract is hansfened to a[other party.

The Company assesses at each frnancial position date whether there is objective evidence that a

reinsurance contract is impafed. A reinsuance contract is impaired if, and only if:

. there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the

reinsurance asset, that the cedant may not receive all amounts due to it under the terms of the

contract; and
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Building is measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and impairment losses
recognized after the date of the revaluation. Valuations will be performed Aequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ matedally from its carrying amount. Any
revaluation surplus is credited to the revaluation surplus included in the statement of financial position,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in
profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognized in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is
recognized in the statement of income, except to the extent that it oflsets an existing surplus on the same
asset recognized in the revaluation surplus.

Accumulated depreciation as of the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained eamings.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives ofthe assets

' :T-"::-11r 
has reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the cedant wilr receive from theremsurer.

Propertv and EquiDment
Property and equipment are stated at cost except for the builcling that is carried at appraisal value lessaccumulated depreciation and aflowance for imiairment lo*. wf;.o *rrr" ur" sord or retired, their cost,

i::Tl*1^d_T:"j]":l:, Td Ty allowance for impairment are eliminated rorn tr,. u".o,rit. ana-uiygaur or ross resultrng Iiom the disposal is included in the statements ofprofit or loss.

The initial cost. of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, incruding import duties and
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assei to its working condition-and location for iis
intended use. Expenditures incurred after the pioperty and equipment havi been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to expenie in the period the-costs are- incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonshated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from thi use of au item of property and equipment
beyond its originally assessed standard ofperformance, the expenditures are 

"upitu[ir.d 
u, an additional

cost ofproperty and equipment.

Building
Building imp rovernents
Leasehold and imp rovernent s

Omce fumiture and fDdures
Transportation equipment
Electronic Data Processing M achine

20 years

l-5 years

2-5 yea6
l-10 y eals

2-5 yeals
1-5 yeals

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the periods and
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

Impairment of Nonfrnancial Assets

Property and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may nol be recoverable. If any such indication
exists ald where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-

genemting units are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The estimated recoverable amount is the greater of an asset's net selling price and value in use. ln
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-

tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated

recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment
loss is recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Reversal of impairrnent losses recognized in prior years is recorded when that there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognized for the asset no longer exist or have deueased. The reversal is
recorded in the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. However, the increased
carrying amount ofan asset due to reversal of an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that it does
not exceed the carrying amourt that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no
impaiment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

De-recognition of Nonlinancial Assets
An item of the property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition ofthe assets
(computed as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year the assets is derecognized.

Share Capital
Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation t0 transfer cash or other assets. Incremental
coss directly athibutable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the
proceeds, net oftax.

When the Company purchases the Company's equity shares capital (heasuy shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly atUibutable incremental costs (n€t of income taxes), is deducted fiom equity
attributable to the Company's equity holders. Where such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or
otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in equity athibutable to the Company's
equity holders, net of any dtectly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects.

The Company's share capital includes common stocks, prefened shares and treasury stocks.

Retained earnings include all the accumulated earnings ofthe Company less dividends declared.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
also be met before revenue is recognized:

Insurance Contracts and Investment Contracts

(a) Recognition and Measurement

S hort-t erm I nsur ance C ontr qcts

These contracts are casualty and property insuance confacts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company's customers against the risk of causing harm to third
parties as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered include both contractual and non-
contractual eYents.

Property insurance conhacts mainly compensate the Company's customers for damage suffered to their
properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their
premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the

insured properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Premiums from short duation insurance contracts are recognized as revenue over the period of contracts

using the 24th method. The portion ofthe premiums written that relate to the unexphed periods ofthe
policies as at the date of lurancial position are accounted for as Uneamed hemiums and presented in the

liability section of the statements of frnancial position. The related reinsuance premiums ceded that
pertained to the unexpired periods as at the date of financial position are accounted for as Ceded

Reinsurance Premiums shown as part of assets in the statements of hnancial position. The net changes

in these accounts between financial position dates are either charged or ffedited to income.

52



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest income is recogniz€d as the interest accrues using the effective interest method.

Other income includes gain on sale of stocks and property and investment income. Gain on sale is
recognized when sold. Recovery from impairment losses is recognized when collected.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Revenues from
dividends received and those Aom other sources are recognized when declared aad eamed regardless of
when received.

Foreign currencies denominated monetary transactions are translated into the functional currency using
the prevailing exchange rates at financial position dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign
currency transactions are credited or charged directly to operations.

Expense Recosnition
Expenses are recognized in the statements of profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit
related to a decrease in asset or an increase in a liabitity has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Expenses are recognized in the statements ofprofit or loss and other comprehensive income:

. on the basis of a direct association between the costs incured and the eaming of specific items
income;

. on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expected to
arise over several accounting periods and the association can only be broadly or indirectly determined;
OI

o immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that,
future economic benefits do not qualifl or cease to quali$, for recognition in the statements of
financial position as an asset.

BeneJits and Claims
Gross benefits and claims consist of benefits and claims paid to policyholden, which are based on the
loss adjuster estimates. It ftrther includes intemal and extemal claims handling costs that are directly
related to the processing and settlement of claims.

Insurance claims are recorded on the basis ofnotification received

Ot her Underwr iting Expens es

Other underwriting expense pe(ains to the costs incurred by the Company prior to the issuance of
policies to its policyholders. These costs include expenses for technical inspections, actuarial reviews
and other work tlat is necessary to determine whether or not to accept the risks to be written. These costs

are recognized as expense as they are incured.

Comprehensive Income
The Company uses single statement of comprehensive income, in which it presents all items of income
and expense recognized in the period.

Commission income eamed from short duration insurance contacts are recognized as revenue over the
period of contracts using the 24s method except for marine cargo wherJ the deferred reinsurance
commissions for the last two months ofthe year are considered eamed the following year. The portion of
the commissions that relates to the unexpired periods ofthe policies at the reporting date is accounted for
as deferred reinsurance commissions and lodged into commissions payable and presented in the
liabilities section ofthe statement of financial position.

J_l

General Expenses
General expenses are recognized in the statement ofprofit or loss as they are incuned.



EMPIRE INSURANCE COMPANY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Related Party Relationships and Transactions
Related party relationship exists when (a) a person or a close member ofthat person's family has control
or joint control, has significant influence or is a member of the key management personnel of the
reporting entity or a parent of the reporting entity. (b) An entity is related to the Company if, the entity
and the Company are members ofthe same group, one entity is an associate or joint venture ofthe other
entity, both entities are joint ventures ofthe same third party, one entity is ajoint venture ofa third entity
and the other enlity is an associate ofthe third party, an entity is a post-employment beneflit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Company, the entity is controlled or joint conholled by a penon who has
control or joint control over the Company and a person as identified in (a) above has significant
influence over the entity is a member ofthe key management personnel ofthe entity or of a parent ofthe
entity. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance ofthe
relationships, and not merely to the legal form.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,

regardless ofwhether a price is charged.

Leases
Policy applicable upon adoption of PFRS 16
At inception ofa contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in PFRS 16. This policy is

applied to conhacts entered into on or after January l, 2019.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases

as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable before January 1, 2019
For contracts entered into before January l, 2019, the Company determined whether the anangement

was, or contained, a lease based on the following assessment:

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the

arrangement at inception date and requtes an assessment ofwhether the fulfilknent of the arrangement

is dependent on the use ofa specific asset or assets and the anangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after inception ofthe lease only ifone ofthe following applies:

(a) there is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension ofthe anangement; a

renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term ofthe renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

(b) there is a change in the determination ofwhether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;

or
(c) there is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease fiom the date when the change

in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for any ofthe scenarios above and at the date of renewal

or extension period for the second scenario.
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Emoloyee Benefits
a. Retirement Cost

The Company's retirement plan is non-contributory and of the defined benefit type which provides a
retirement benefit equal to One-half month's salary for every year of credited service in accordance
with the Retirement Pay law (Republic Act No. 7641). Benefits are paid in lump sum upon retirement
or separation in accordance with the terms of the plan. A The retirement cost is determined by
applying the Accrued Benefit Actuarial Cost Method taking into account the factors of investment,
mortality, disability and salary projection rate. The fund is administered by a duly appointed fund
trustee.

b. Short-term employee beneJits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, sick leave, bonuses, social security contribution, philhealth
contribution, pag-ibig contribution and non-monetary benefits are recognized as employee benefit expense

and accrued when the associated services are rendered by the employees ofthe Company.

c. Profit-sharing and bonus plans
The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bolus€s and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Company recognizes a provision wherc contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

lncome taxes
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.

Current taxes
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis ofthe tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis ofamounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and thefu carrying amounts in the flnancial statemetrts. However, defered tax liabilities arc not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition ofgoodwill; defened income tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business

combination that at the time ofthe hansaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balanee sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is

realized or the defened income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that futule taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Defened tax relating to items recognized outside profit and loss is recognized in correlation to the

underlying hansaction both in OCI or directly in equity and not in the company's statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Defened income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Current and deferred tat for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or dtectly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recogrized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Yalue-added Tat (/AT)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ofVAT, except:

o where the VAT incured on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part ofthe cost of acquisition ofthe asset or
as part ofthe expense item applicable; and

o receivables and payables that are stated with the amount ofVAT included.

Eaminss per Share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares.

Book Value per Share
Book value per share is calculated by dividing stockholders equity by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for any subsequent stock dividends declared.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amormt of the outflovr' may still be

uncertain. A present obligation arises from tJIe presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has

resulted from past events.

Provisions are measuied at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on
the most reliable evidence available at the financial position date, including the risks and uncertainties

associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in the course of
settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain as a separate asset, not exceeding
the amount ofthe related provision. Wlere there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. In addition, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values, where time value of
money is material.

Provisions are reviewed at each financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present obligations is

considered probable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability
is recognized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are

considered contingent assets, hence, arc not recognized in the flrnancial statements.

Continsencies
Contingent liabilities represent possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by the

occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe
Company. They are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of
an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
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32. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and futule periods if the revision affects both curent and future
periods.

Judsments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made judgments, apart
fiom those involving estimations that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:

Product classification
The significance of insurance risk is dependent on both the probability of an insured event and the
magnitude of its potential effect. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk
as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least l0%
more than the benefits payable if the insued event did not occur. The Company has determined that the
insurance policies have significant insurance risks and therefore meet the definition of insurance
contracts and should be accounted for as such.

Fair Value Meqsurement of Finqncial lnstruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ofjudgment is required in establishing
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fah value offinancial instruments.

Financiql assets not quoted in an active markel
The Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not
in an active market. Included in the evaluation on whether a hnancial asset is quoted in an active market
is the determination on whether quoted pdces are readily and regularly available, and whether those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. In addition,
the Company considers the significance ofthe variability in the range ofrecoverable fair value estimates.

The carrying value of AFS financial assets not quoted in an active market and are carried at cost
amounted to P16,785,000 as ofDecember 31, 2019 and 2018. (See Note 6).

Revenue Recognition
The Company's revenue recognition policies require use of estimates and assumptions that may aflect
the reported amounts ofrevenue and receivables.

Subseouent Events
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company,s position at frnancial
position date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year end eyents that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.
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ln the application ofthe Company's accounting policies, which are described inNote 31, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sowces. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Determinalion of Fair Values of Financial Assets
Fair value determinations for financial assets are based generally on listed market prices or broker or
dealer price quotations. Ifprices are not readily determinable or if liquidating the positions is reasonably
expected to affect the market prices, fair value is based on their intemal valuation models or
management's estimate of amounts that could be realized under current market conditions, assuming an
orderly liquidation over a reasonable period of time. The use of assumptions could produce materially
different estimates of fair value.

The Ultimqte Liability Arisingfron Claims Made (Jnder Insurance Contracts
The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from clairns made under insurance contracts is the
Company's most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimate ofthe liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims.

Estimates have to be made for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the reporting date. It can
take significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty. The
primary techlique adopted by management in estimating the cost ofnotified and IBNR claims is that of
using past claims settlement hends to predict future claims settlement tlends. At each end of the
reporting period, prior year claims estimated are assessed for adequacy and changes made are charged to
provision. Claims are not discounted for the time value ofmoney.

The assumption underlying the estimation of the claims provision is that a Company's past claims
development experience can be used to project future claims development and hence ultimate claim
costs. Historical claims development is analyzed by accident years but can also be ftrther analyzed by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims are usually addressed by being reserved at the
face value of loss adjuster's estimates. Assumptions used are those implicit in the historical claims
development data on which the projections are based.

Estimated Allowancefor Impairment Losses on Receivables
The Company evaluates the possibility of }osses that may arise out of the non-collection of receivables
based on a certain percentage of the outstanding balance of receivable and on an evaluation of the
current status of the account. As of December 31,2019, allowance for impairment losses amounted to
P656,340 was provided for the accounts that were not deemed collectible.

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ ifthe Company made different
judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in the allowance for impairment losses on

receivables would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

Estinated Useful Lives o! Property and Equipment
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives ofproperty and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible

that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about

by changes in the factors mentioned.

D etermining Functi onal C ut enqt
Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the company, the
furctional curency ofthe company has been determinid tobe the philippine peso. The philippine peso
is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates. Ir is thJcunincy
that mainly influences the revenues and expenses ofthe Company.

Estimates
The key assumptions conceming the future and otler sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial
position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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Asset Impairment
The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The facton that the Company consideB
important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:

. significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected future operating results;

. significant changes in the manner ofuse ofthe acquired assets or the shategy for overall business;
and

. significant negative industr5r or economic trends.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell. The fair value
less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of atr asset in an arm's lengh nansaction while
value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets or, ifit is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated Aom the
continued use of the assets, the Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the fnancial statements.

No indications of impaiment were noted on property and equipment as ofD€cember 31, 2019 and 2018.

Retirement B eneJit Obl igati on
The cost ofthe defmed benefit pension plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present

value ofthe pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. Al actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination ofthe discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is

highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The valuation results are based on the employee data as of valuation dates as provided by the Company.
The average discount rate was based on bootshapped PDEX PDST-R2 rates at various tenors as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018. Assumed discount rate is used in the measurement ofthe present value of
the obligation, service and interest cost.

Delerred lncome Toxes

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred income iaxes at each flnancial position date and

reduces deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that suflicient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred income tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no
assurance that the Company will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of the defened
income tax assets to be utilized.

The Company recognized defened tax liability amounting to P940,159 in 2019 and deferred tax asset

amounting to P1,301,236 in 2018. (See Note 24)

Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Company canies certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of
accounting estimates and judgment. while signihcant components of fair value measurement were
determined 

-using 
verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign eichange rates, interest mte), the amount of

changes in fair value would differ ifthe company utilizea difrerenivalue methodology.-iny changes in
fair value of these financiat assets and liabiiities would affect direcrly the saltements of"othe,
comprehensive income and statements ofchanges in equity. Fair values of frnancial assets and liabilities
are disclosed in details in Note 26.
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Contingencies
The Company is curently a party litigant in certain case. The estimate ofthe probable costs is based on
the analysis ofpotential result in consultation with legal counsel.

33. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
REVENUE

REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL

Revenue Regulation No. l5-2010

On November 25, 2010, the Bureau of lntemal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulation (RR) No. l5-
2010 which took effect on December 29, 2010 which provides for additional information requled to be
disclosed in the notes to financial statements regarding taxes, duties and license fee, paid or accrued,
during the taxable year. Specifically, the disclosure should include the following: (a) amount of Value-
Added Tax (VAT) output taxes declared during the year with account title and amount/s; (b) amount of
VAT lnput taxes claimed; (c) landed cost ofimports and the amount ofcustoms duties and tariff fees; (d)
amount ofexcise taxes, classified per major product category; (e) documentary stamp tax (DST) on loan
instruments and other transactions; (f) all other taxes, local and national, license and permit fees lodged
under taxes and licenses account both under the Cost of sales and operating expense accounts;
(g) amount of withholding taxes(h) periods covered and amounts of deficiency assessments; and (i) tax
cases and amounts involved.

In compliance with the requirements set forth by RR 15-2010, the following taxes are either paid or
accrued by the Company.

The following table shows the Company's Sales and VAT output declared as ofDecember 31, 2019

and 2018:

2019 2018

Undenniting income

VAT output

? 172,83E323 P

20,140,599

| 44,394,9'19

t7,327,397

2018 2017

Beginning ofthe year

Cunent year's purchases
Domestic purchase of services

? 1,772 ?

1t,432,547

706,093

6,854,289

Application against output VAT

rr,434319

(10,80s"240)

7,560,382

(7,s58,610)

Balance at the end ofthe ? 629 79? 1,772

3. Landed Cost, Customs' Duties and TariffFees

The Company did not have any importations in 2019 and 2018 that would requte for the payment

ofcustoms duties and tarifffees.
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4. Excise Tax

The Company did not have any transactions in 2019 and20l8 which are subject to excise tax.

5. Documentary Stamp Tax

The Company paid P21,369,806 and P19,422,181 as ofDecember 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

6. Taxes and Licenses

The details oftaxes and licenses are shown as part ofexpenses follows:

20t9 2018

Local

Community tax

Business taxes and others

P 10,500

2,532,897

10,500

3,648,77 5

P

7. Withholding taxes

The details of total withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year ended Decenrber 31,2019 and

2018 are as follows:

2019 2013

National lntcrtral R€venue Taxes

Withholding taxes

Expanded Withholding Tax
Final Withholding Tax

P 6,760,358 P

s12249
1,250,451

5,367,791

542,249

1.033.474Withholding Tax on Compensatinn

? 8,s53,0s8 P 6.9

8. Deficiency Tax Assessntents and Tax Cascs

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did nct have any f,tnal deficiency tax assessmerils

from the BIR nor does it have tax cases outstarrding or pending in courts or bodi3s outside o{ the

BIR in any ofthe open years.
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